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Highlights of the Year
EREEEEEEEE

February

e Shanghai Simcom and SiRF jointly
launched A-GPS feature phone, personal
tracking terminal and wireless module
solution
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April
e Shanghai Sunrise’s touch panel product
line trial-produced successfully
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June

¢ \WCDMA/HSDPA(7.2Mbps) USB Modem[
SIM5250 which is developed by Shanghai
Simcom has been successfully produced in

quantity
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July
SIM Technology acquired Shanghai
Basecom
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August

Mr Raymond Tsang was promoted as the
Deputy Chairman of the Company, and Mr
Tony Li was appointed as CEO of the
business operation headquarter of the
Group

SIM Technology cooperates with SKTC on
TD-SCDMA Wireless Terminal Platform
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October

Shanghai Simcom was awarded Shanghai
Patent Activity Exemplary Enterprises
Shanghai Sunrise was awarded Shanghai
Patent Activity Experimental Enterprises
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November

Shanghai Simcom successfully developed
TD-SCDMA/WIMAX Dual Mode USB Modem
0 Downlink: 384Kbps[]

Shanghai Basecom developed N3 Smart
Phone and produced in quantity, based on
EDGE Platform, it is the first Smart Phone
produced in quantity
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December

SIM Technology was awarded Deloitte
Technology Fast 50 China and Deloitte
Technology Fast 500 Asia Pacific for the
third time

Mr Simon Wong, President of the Group ,
was awarded Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong 2007

Shanghai Simcom was awarded as the
2007 Key Software Enterprises under the
State’s Planning Projects

Applied a total of 132 invention patents, 47
utility patents and 26 design patents
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Chairman’s Statement
0000

Dear Shareholders:

| am pleased to report that, SIM Technology Group Limited (the
“Company” or “SIM Technology”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) were
one of the market front runners in China, in sales volume and net profit,
in the year 2007. Taking into consideration of the fierce competition,
it has been a hard task in making such an achievement. At the start
of the year, with reference to market changes, the management of the
Group speeded up strategic repositioning, completed structure reform,
strengthened development of new-tech market, so that after a short
period of decline, the Group stood up and achieved a V shape rebound
in annual operation results. Moreover, such business reform and
investments in new technology have made the Company well positioned
in the market, laid a solid foundation for future development, and trained
an excellent team of high spirit. Backed by numerous potential high
quality projects and sufficient funds on hand, we believe the years to

come will be very promising.
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During the year, the Group has formulated a new
strategy and laid down a solid foundation for
future development.
oooooooooooononn

oooooooononnn

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), | would
like to express my cordial appreciation to all members of the management
and the employees for their efforts and dedication throughout the year.
Finally, | would like to thank the financial institutions, shareholders and

investors for their continuous support and confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying
Chairman

Hong Kong

13 March 2008
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Words from the President
Oogd

| am delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2007. The Group’s revenue and net profit were
approximately HK$2,897 million and approximately HK$241 million,
representing a drop of 15.26% and 35.44% respectively when compared
to those of 2006. Basic earnings per share for the year was HK15.9 cents,

representing a drop of 35.89% when compared to that of last year.

4 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2007
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) have recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per share to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 7
May 2008. The Company'’s register of members will be closed from 5 May
2008 to 7 May 2008, both days inclusive, and the proposed final dividend
will be paid on or about 20 May 2008. The payment of dividends shall
be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual

general meeting to be held on 7 May 2008 (“Annual General Meeting”).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

After a period of tough business challenges and the re-positioning of our
business strategies in 2007, we achieved HK$2,897 million in revenue
and HK$240.7 million in net profit for the year ended 31 December
2007. Despite the price pressure in the global wireless communications
industry, the gross profit margin of the Group maintained at above 14%
for the year 2007. In the second half of 2007 (“2H-2007"), revenue and
gross profit grew by 60.3% and 74.76% respectively when compared
with those of the first half of 2007 (“1H-2007). In 2008, we intend to
continue with our strategy of engaging in high quality business and further
enhancing efficiency of our operations. We believe we are well-positioned
to serve the demands of new technologies in the mobile communications

industry.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Avoided price competition in the low-end mobile handset market

The China domestic feature phone market was faced with tremendous
price pressure. Despite achieving another record year of handset
solutions unit shipment with 43.98% growth from 2006 to 2007, our
revenue declined by 17.5% as compared with that of 2006. To combat
the decline in feature phone market price, we have unveiled three high-
end design solutions — analog mobile TV, GPS phones and smart phones,
which, together with the increasing design service income from large
original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”), drove the improvement
in the gross profit margin of the mobile handset solutions in 2H-2007
(12.34%) as compared with 1H-2007 (11.05%).

Words from the President
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Words from the President
ogooad

In 2007, we launched a complete suite of TD-SCDMA solutions including
data cards, feature phones and smart phones. We also successfully
extended our service to global leading handset OEMs and international
mobile operators, which has enabled us to establish a strong position in
the industry to capture future TD-SCDMA market growth.

Accelerated global reach for wireless module solutions

Our wireless module solutions achieved another record year of unit
shipment and revenue in 2007. The sales quantity of and revenue from
wireless module solutions increased by 43.16% and 16.05% year-on-
year respectively. The volume growth was driven by our India business.
Our industrial application solutions were also well received in the
European market. Together with the launch of a series of HSDPA (3.5G)
wireless module solutions tailored for the international market, we believe

we have strengthened our growth potential in the global market.

Improved cost structure of LCD modules

Touch-panel display module has become a trend in mobile handset
applications. We started investing in touch-panel screen production in
our LCD module factory in early 2007, and successfully mass produced
touch-panel screens in 2H-2007. As a result, our gross profit margin for
LCD module business for 2H-2007 improved to 9.32% as compared to
7.26% in 1H-2007. We intend to continue investing in our manufacturing

capability to improve our cost competitiveness.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Focus on R&D investments to drive business growth

In 2007, we have successfully re-positioned our business strategies to
speed up our research and development (“R&D”) for higher returns and
higher performance mobile handset and wireless communication module
solutions. In 2008, we expect to devote more R&D resources to develop
advance technology in our solution offerings to support the demands of
the domestic and international markets. To further enhance our solutions
portfolio, we intend to expand our high-end solutions including WCDMA/
HSDPA, Digital Mobile TV (CMMB), TD/WiMAX and TD-HSDPA Solutions,
which the management believes to have potential future business growth.

6 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2007
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Continuous expansion of international business

In 2007, we have successfully increased the proportion of our export
revenue to above 10% (2006: 4.5%). In 2008, we intend to further
strengthen the capacity of our original design manufacturer (ODM)
business models where it fits the high-end solutions for the international
markets. The management believes the international market will continue

to represent a significant future opportunity for our growth.

Our path ahead

We believe that the mobile communication market will remain challenging
in 2008. However, our future business has several promising trends.
The management expects the demand for higher bandwidth, GPS, and
entertainment rich mobile communication solutions will drive faster new
technology adoption. We believe that the re-positioning of our business
strategies and our R&D investments in 2007 have positioned us to

capture these future growing market segments.

Wong Hei, Simon
President

Hong Kong

13 March 2008
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Ooodoooao

=)

2.5G is a more advance technology compared with the second generation mobile
communication but less than the third one. It breaks through the constraint of
circuit-switched technology to data transmission rate in 2G system, the introduction
of the packet switching technology makes the fundamental change for the data
transmission rate, GPRS is the typical representative. Additionally, HSCSD, GPRS,
WAP, EDGE, Bluetooth, EPOC are all belonged to 2.5G.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial results

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group’s revenue decreased
by 15.26% to HK$2,897 million (2006: HK$3,418.9 million) as
compared with that of 2006. In 1H-2007, the Group shifted its R&D
resources to high performance product development and suffered from
the tough pricing competition in the China mobile handset market.
However, the Group experienced a turnaround after 1H-2007 by
introducing high performance products and increasing penetration into
the overseas market. The revenue for the 2H-2007 increased by 60.31%
to HK$1,784.1 million (second half of 2006 (“2H-2006"): HK$1,686.1
million) as compared to the 1H-2007.

Management's Discussion and Analysis
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3G is the third generation mobile communication technology. It is a mobile
communication system which combines the wireless communications with the
internet and other multimedia communications. It is able to handle images, music,
video streaming and other forms of media. Meanwhile it provides many information
services, including web browsing, teleconference, E-business. In order to provide the
said services, wireless network must be able to support different data transmission
speed. The transmission speed for indoor, outdoor and driving is at least 2Mbit/s,
384Kbit/s and 144Kbit/s respectively. CDMA is considered as the first choice for 3G.
The 3G standards are WCDMA, CDMA2000 and TD-SCDMA at this moment. Wimax
is the fourth standard, which was just accepted by ITU.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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The gross profit of the Group decreased by 18.53% year-on-year to
HK$410.6 million (2006: HK$504 million) for the year 2007 due to the

average selling price erosion for mobile handset solutions. The gross

profit margin of the Group, however, maintained at 14.17% in 2007
(2006: 14.74%) because of the increasing sales contribution by the
design service income of mobile handset solutions, as well as the wireless

communication module solutions, which had higher gross profit margins.

The Group achieved a profit for the year of HK$240.7 million (2006:
HK$372.9 million) for the year ended 31 December 2007, representing
a drop of 35.44% as compared with that of 2006. The profit for the 2H-
2007 increased by 67.77% to HK$150.8 million (2H-2006: HK$171.3
million) as compared with that of 1H-2007.The basic earnings per share
for the year 2007 decreased by 35.89% year-on-year to HK15.9 cents
(2006: HK24.8 cents).
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3.5G is the enhanced wireless technology of WCDMA, with High Speed Downlink
and Packet Access (HSDPA, High-Speed Downlink Packet Access). Itis a
modulation/demodulation system for 3GPP which is in the agreement of R5 needs
to meet the requirement uplink/downlink to the data asymmetry. This construction
is under the same network structure of WCDMA which has been built up and the
larger data rate for the downlink will be increased to 14.4 Mbps. This technology is
an important technology for the last net construction for WCDMA on improving the
downlink capacity and data rate.
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Research and development expenses

In 2007, the Group devoted itself to the development of high performance
mobile handset solutions including China 3G, Mobile-TV and smart phone
handset solutions. In order to boost our R&D capabilities, in July 2007, the
Group acquired a mobile handset design company which had a strong R&D
team with 150 experts specialising in R&D of WiFi/EDGE and WCDMA/
HSDPA. The number of design and development team members increased
to 933 (2006: 638) in 2007. The R&D expenses, which amounted to
HK$98.2 million (2006: HK$76 million), representing 3.39% (2006:

2.22%) of the Group’s revenue.

Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Selling and distribution costs

In 2007, the selling and distribution costs increased by 43.74% to
HK$71.9 million (2006: HK$50 million) resulting from the expansion of
the Group’s international business. The ratio of the selling and distribution
costs over revenue in 2007 was 2.48% (2006: 1.46%).

Administrative expenses

In 2007, the Group’s administrative expenses increased by 11.07% to
HK$85.6 million (2006: HK$77.1 million), representing 2.96% (2006:
2.26%) of the revenue. The increase was mainly due to the rise of staff
and rental costs.

Segment results
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Mobile handset gooooobooog

solutions 1,797.0 10,754
LCD modules oooooo 461.5 4,811
Wireless gooo

communication goooooa

module solutions 638.5 3,682

2129 11.85% 21783 7469
39.3 852% 6904 5634

1584 24.81% 5502 2,572

323.6 14.85%
522  7.56%

1282 23.30%
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Mobile handset solutions

Revenue from the mobile handset solutions of the Group for 2007
decreased by 17.5% year-on-year to HK$1,797 million. During the 1H-
2007, the Group shifted more R&D resources to high performance
product development including China 3G, Mobile-TV and smart phone
handset solutions, and successfully introduced those products in 2H-
2007. The revenue of this segment for 2H-2007 increased by 59.91% to
HK$1,105.6 million (2H-2006: HK$1,114 million) as compared to that of
1H-2007. The Group has launched 173 (2006: 269) handset models and
36 (2006: 29) handset platforms in 2007.

LCD modules

The Group successfully developed touch-panel screens and applied them
in our LCD modules in 2H-2007. As a result, the gross profit margin of
this segment for 2007 improved to 8.52% (2006: 7.56%). Revenue and
sales quantity of this segment for 2007 have decreased by 33.16% and
14.61% respectively as compared with those of 2006 because some
of our customers started to source their own LCD modules instead of
bundling together with the mobile handset solutions. On the other hand,
revenue and gross profit of this segment for 2H-2007 increased by
57.47% to HK$282.2 million (2H-2006: HK$345.3 million) and 102%
to HK$26.3 million (2H-2006: HK$8.3 million) respectively as compared
with those in 1H-2007.

Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Attributable to our effective cost management and our increasing
overseas market penetration in the wireless communication business,
2007 was the third consecutive year that the Group recorded growth in
this segment. Revenue and sales quantity of this segment increased by
16.05% and 43.16% respectively as compared with those of 2006. The
gross profit ratio of this segment also improved to 24.81% (2006: 23.3%).

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had bank balances of HK$620.4
million (2006: HK$822.7 million), among which 72.3% was held in
Renminbi, 21.1% was held in United States dollars (“US dollars”) and the
remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars. The Group intends to
finance its working capital and capital expenditure plans from such bank

balances.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had no bank borrowings (2006: Nil).
The turnover period of the Group’s inventory, trade receivables together
with notes and bills receivable and trade and notes payables were 72
days, 14 days and 85 days respectively (2006: 54 days, 19 days and 61
days respectively) in 2007. The turnover periods are consistent with the
respective policies of the Group on credit terms granted to customers and

credit terms obtained from suppliers.

16 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2007
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
gooooooo

After reviewing the current financial position based on the Group’s 00o00o0ooooooooooooDoooog
finance policy, the management of the Group considered that it was not Jooooooooooooooooooo
necessary to use any financial instrument for hedging purpose nor adopt 00000o0oo0oooooooooboooo
any particular hedging policy in 2007. oo
As at 31 December 2007, the Company had an issued share capital Joo0ooooooooooooooDoooo
comprising 1,515,880,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each. 00o0o0o1,515880,000000000.1000
ooooo
CASH FLOW DATA oooooo
Net cash inflow from operating activities gooooooooo 391,022 751,765
Net cash outflow from investing activities oooooooooo (421,464) (213,622)
Net cash outflow from financing activities gpooooooooo (197,246) (314,424)

oooooooooo ooooooo
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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The Group’s net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year 2007
were primarily attributable to the cash inflows from operating activities,
have been offset by the acquisitions of the R&D company, land use right,
fixed assets, expenditures on intangible assets, acquisitions of available-
for-sale investments, which was a strategic investment in our supplier,

and the payment of year 2006 final and year 2007 interim dividends.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2007, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$1,955.2 million (2006: HK$1,833.9 million) and there was no bank
borrowings (2006: Nil). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total

bank borrowings over total assets, was 0% (2006:0%).

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2007, the Group had 2,499 (2006: 1,903)

employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme for all its employees in Hong Kong, and provides its PRC
employees with welfare schemes as required by the applicable laws and
regulations of the PRC. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses to its
employees by reference to individual performance and the performance
of the Group. Total staff costs incurred by the Group amounted to
HK$219.3 million (2006: HK$180.7 million) during 2007.

18 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2007
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The Board believes that the Group’s employees are among the most
valuable assets of the Group and have contributed to the success of the

Group. The Group also provides in-house training for its employees.
The emolument policies of the Group are set out on page 37 of this report.

The Company has adopted share option schemes. A summary of the
principal terms and conditions of the share option schemes are set out in

note 32 to the financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the sales of the Group are denominated in Renminbi and most of

the purchases of inventories are denominated in US dollars.

With the introduction of a more elastic exchange rate regime for
Renminbi, the Renminbi exchange rate movements might become
more volatile, creating an uncertainty effect on the Group’s business.
Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade payables and bank
balances are denominated in US dollars, therefore exposing the Group
to US dollars currency risk. The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy but will continue to monitor any further changes in
Renminbi’s exchange rate and would proactively take measures to
minimise any adverse impact that fluctuations of exchange rates might

have on the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Though our individual ability is limited, the collective effort of each good deed, no
matter how small it may seem, will add up to make this world better. Our actions
will speak loud and our results will draw others to our good causes-protecting the
environment and helping those in disadvantage. Together we can make the future
better.

— Mr Wong Cho Tung.
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Development Concept of SIM Technology

ooooodod

LONG TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term values for our customers,

shareholders and employees.

TARGETED AT MARKET LEADERS

Our target: to make the Company the leader in global wireless
communication end product solutions and services. All employees of the

Group are fully confident in, and are striving for achieving the target.

CUSTOMER ORIENTED WITH CONTINUED
INNOVATION

We are customer oriented. We attend to, in a timely manner, and continue
to satisfy customer needs, through continuous innovation in technology

and management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from investors, customers, suppliers, as well as

employees.
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Care for our Future
oddoonon

MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US
With “Making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision, the
Group aims to provide the world with a light of betterment through our
continuous efforts.

Support from the community is vital to corporate development, thus giving
back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of our
limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take up
our responsibility, the world will be better because of us. ------ Mr Wong
Cho Tung

Sunrise people should not only be satisfied with material wealth but
should also enrich ourselves spiritually. | wish that more Sunrise people
can share our charitable culture and carry it out so as to create a better
and more harmonious future together. ------ Ms Yeung Man Ying

SUNRISE PEOPLE

An organisation establishes and funds by the employees of the Group for
Charity purpose.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and started
from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.

ENCOURAGEMENT AND RECOGNITIONS

The Group was awarded “Remarkable Contribution of Chinese Charitable
Causes Award” by the China Charity Federation and was nominated for
the highest award for Chinese Charitable Causes, the “Chinese Charitable
Award” elected by the Ministry of Civil Affairs of PRC. These awards serve
as recognition and endorsement of Sunrise people’s culture and drive us
to work even harder.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
ooddoooo

DIRECTORS

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong"), aged 63, is the chairman and
executive Director of the Company, the chairperson of Shanghai
Sunrise Electronic Technology Co., Limited (“Shanghai Sunrise”)
and a director of Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited (“SEIL").
Mrs Wong is responsible for developing strategic direction and
development of the Group. In 1986, Mrs Wong together with
her spouse, Mr. Wong Cho Tung, founded Sunrise Technology
Limited (“Sunrise Technology (HK)"), a company engaging in the
distribution of electronic components. Over the years, Mrs Wong
and Mr Wong Cho Tung had established a number of companies
which engaged in the electronics and telecommunications
business including Shanghai Sunrise, one of the Group’s main
operating subsidiary which was established in November 1993.
Mrs Wong has over 20 years of operational and management
experience in the electronics and telecommunications industry.
Before setting up Sunrise Technology (HK), Mrs Wong also
lectured at the Electrical Department of the South China
University of Technology in 1977. Mrs Wong has been a guest
professor at Tongji University since 2003. Mrs Wong graduated in
1968 from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics,
specialising in electrical engineering.
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Mr Wong Hei, Simon, aged 35, is the president and an
executive Director of the Company, the managing director of
SIM Technology HK Limited (“SIM Technology (HK)"), a director
of Shanghai Sunrise, SEIL, Simcom International Holdings
Limited, Suncom International Holdings Limited and Max
Vision Limited and is responsible for overall management and
supervision of the Group’s business, ranging from production
development, marketing operation, supply chain management
to devising business strategies. He is a son of Mr Wong and
Mrs Wong and the younger brother of Mr Wong Sun. Mr Wong
Hei, Simon has over 10 years of experience in the electronics
and telecommunications industry and extensive experience in
investment and business management. Prior to joining Sunrise
Technology (HK), he worked at the headquarters of National
Semiconductor in the Silicon Valley in 1995. In May 2001,
Sunrise Technology (HK), Sunrise Technology Group Limited and
their subsidiaries (together, the “Sunrise Group”) were acquired
by Avnet Sunrise Limited and Avnet Asia Pte Limited upon which
Mr Wong Hei, Simon was appointed as the managing director
of Chinatronic Technology Limited. Mr Wong Hei, Simon joined
the Group as a director of SEIL in February 2000 and became
a director of Shanghai Sunrise in October 2003. He obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in science from Boston University in 1995,
specializing in electrical engineering.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
goooooooog

Mr Tsang Hen Loon, Raymond (“Mr Tsang”), aged 49, is the ([Do0o00O0o4000000000
deputy chairman and an executive Director of the Company 0000000000 oOOoOOooOOoOooOOoOoO
and is responsible for assisting the chairman of the company J0o00o0oooo0oo0ooOoooo200000
to develop strategic direction of the Group. Mr Tsang has over 00000 National Semiconductor0 0 000D
20 years of experience in the electronics industry. Mr Tsang Joo00o0ooooo0oooooooooooo
was the marketing director (Asia-Pacific region) of National goooopoooooooooUoopoopoooo
Semiconductor. In 1995, Mr Tsang joined the Sunrise Group as 0 O Pericom Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.O O
the managing director of Sunrise Technology (HK). Two years Jo00ooooo0000oooooooooooDoo
later, he joined Pericom Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a 0000000 ooo0o0o0ooooooooo
semiconductor company, as general manager. Mr Tsang re- O000O0OO0OAvnetDOOOOOODOOOOODODO
joined Sunrise Technology (HK) as the chief executive officer in 000 Avnet Sunrise LimitedOD OO OO0 OO00OO
2000. In 2001, the electronic components distribution business O00000MOO00O0O00O0OO0O0OO Avnet
of the Sunrise Group was acquired by Avnet. Mr Tsang became Electronics Marketing Asia O 0 0O O

vice president and regional director (Hong Kong and PRC)

of Avnet Sunrise Limited in May 2001 and was promoted to

president of Avnet Electronics Marketing Asia in March 2002.

Mr Tsang has extensive experience in corporate management goooopoOo0ooOooO0oDOoO0oOoooDoOoo
and strategic business planning. Mr Tsang re-joined the Group Joo0o00o0oo0ooOoooOoooOoooo
on 1 January 2005. Mr Tsang obtained a bachelor degree 0000000000 University of Wisconsin-
of science in electrical engineering from the University of MadisonDDOOOOD0O0OO0OOODOOOOODOD
Wisconsin-Madison in 1981 and a master’s degree in business 0000000oooooooooog
administration from the East Asia Open Institute in 1993.
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Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong"), aged 63, is an executive
Director and the president of the business operation headquarter
of the Group. Mr Wong is primarily responsible for the overall
management and supervision of the Group’s business, ranging
from product development, marketing operation, supply chain
management to devising business strategies. Mr Wong is the
chairperson of Shanghai SIM Technology Limited, a director of
Shanghai Sunrise, SEIL, SIM Technology Group (BVI) Limited
and SIM Technology (HK). Mr Wong is also a the director of
Info Dynasty Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the
Company. In 1986, Mr Wong together with his spouse, Ms Yeung
Man Ying, founded Sunrise Technology (HK). In 1993, Shanghai
Sunrise, one of the main operating subsidiaries of the Group,
was incorporated as a subsidiary of Sunrise Technology (HK).
Under the leadership of Mr Wong, Sunrise Technology (HK)
has expanded into one of the larger distributors of electronic
components in China. In May 2001, Sunrise Group attracted
Avnet Sunrise Limited and Avnet Asia Pte Limited (“Avnet”) to
acquire the Sunrise Group’s components distribution business.
After the successful acquisition of the component distribution
business by Avnet, Mr Wong was appointed as a senior vice
president of Avnet Asia Pte Limited. Mr Wong graduated in 1968
from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics,
specializing in electrical engineering. Mr Wong has decades of
experience in the electrical, electronics and telecommunications
industry. Prior to co-founding Sunrise Technology (HK), Mr Wong
held positions in various companies such as manufacturing
plants in Sichuan Province, the Computer Centre of South China
Institute of Technology in Guangzhou, as well as the Mass Transit
Railway Corporation in Hong Kong. Mr Wong's responsibilities
in these companies included electrical product design as well
as computer hardware and software system development and
modification.

Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

ooooooooo

Mr Zhang Jianping (“Mr Zhang”), aged 42, is an executive
Director and the chief operating officer of the business operation
headquarter of the Group. He is also a director of Shanghai
Sunrise and Shanghai SIM Technology Limited. He assists
the president and the chief executive officer in the overall
management of the Group, including the overall operation of
Shanghai Sunrise and Shanghai Simcom. Mr Zhang joined
Shanghai Sunrise in 1996 and was responsible for the
establishment of Shanghai Simcom in 2002. Mr Zhang has
over 18 years of technology and management experience in the
electronics and telecommunication industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr Zhang was engaged in research with No. 14 Research
Institute of the Ministry of Electronics Industry in China. Mr
Zhang has also been awarded a third class award for national
technological improvements by the State in 1990 and the first
and second class awards for technological improvements by
the Ministry of Electronics in 1989 and 1992 respectively. In
2004, he was named as 00000000 0O0OO (“Shanghai
Outstanding Technology Calibre”) by the Shanghai Municipal
Government. Mr Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in
engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1986 and a
master’s degree in business administration from China Europe
International Business School in 2002.
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Mr Wong Sun (0O 0), aged 35, is an executive Director, a director
of Shanghai Sunrise and SEIL. Mr Wong Sun is responsible for
the business development and operation of the Group. He is
a son of Mr Wong and Mrs Wong and the elder brother of Mr
Wong Hei, Simon. Since joining Sunrise Technology (HK), in
1996, Mr Wong Sun has been involved in the sales operations
of the Group in Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen and has been
responsible for the management of the investment and business
development of Sunrise Technology (HK) and the Group. Mr
Wong Sun joined the Group as a director of SEIL in February
2000 and became a director of Shanghai Sunrise in March 2000.
Mr Wong Sun has over 10 years of experience in the electronics
and telecommunication industry and extensive experience in
investment and business management. In 1994, Mr Wong Sun
obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from the University of
Southern California specialising in engineering and in 2004,
a master’s degree in business administration from the China
Europe International Business School.
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(“Ms Tang”), aged 54, is an executive
Director, vice president of Hunam Resources and Administration
Department of the Group, and a director of Shanghai Sunrise.
Ms Tang has nearly 20 years of experience in human resources
management, administration and corporate operation. Prior to
joining the Group in 1995, Ms Tang was a physician of 0 0 0 O
0000000 (Jiangxi Ganzhou First People’s Hospital) and
the head of technology and deputy chief physician of 0 0 O O
000000 (Nanchang Birth Planning Institute). Since then,
Ms Tang has served as the manager and deputy general manager
of the personnel and administration department of Shanghai
Sunrise. Ms Tang graduated from OO OO0 OO (Gannan
Medical College) in 1978.

(“Mr Heng”), aged 60, is an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr Heng is the managing partner of Morison
Heng, Chartered Accountants and Certified Public Accountants
in Hong Kong. Mr Heng is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr Heng has worked with a number of companies
listed on the Stock Exchange either in the capacity of company
secretary or as an independent non-executive director. In the last
three years, Mr Heng was also an independent non-executive
director of The Thai-Asia Fund Limited, The Thai Asset Fund
Limited, Winfair Investment Company Limited and Tack Fat
Group International Limited. Mr Heng is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Holdings Limited, GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited, Lee &
Man Holding Limited, Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited,
Minth Group Limited, SCUD Group Limited, Soundwill Holdings
Limited, The United Laboratories International Holdings Limited
and Zhong An Real Estate Limited, and a company secretary of
AEON Stores (Hong Kong) Co., Limited and China Life Insurance
Company Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr Heng was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in January 2005.

(“Mr Wang”"), aged 68, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr Wang has 30 years experience in the
steel industry. Mr Wang joined Bao Steel Group in 1980 and has
held a number of senior positions including vice commander
of 00000 ODODO0O (Shanghai Bao Steel Construction
Headquarters) and chairman of the board of several of its joint
venture companies. Mr Wang is a winner of the first class award
of national technology improvements granted by the State in
1993. Mr Wang graduated from Beijing University of Mechanical
Engineering in 1964. Mr. Wang was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in January 2005.
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Mr Zhuang Xingfang (“Mr Zhuang”), aged 59, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr Zhuang is a graduate in management
engineering of Hangzhou University of Electronics Technology
Industry and obtained a master’s degree in engineering in
1996. He has acted as deputy head of Plant 877 of the Ministry
of Electronics Industry and the Economic Adjustment and
State-owned Assets Supervisory Department of the Ministry of
Electronics Industry. He is now the chairman of CCID Consulting
Company Limited (a Company listed on the Stock Exchange)
and deputy director of the Alliance for the Promotion of
Informatisation in China. He is a senior accountant and registered
accountant (non-practising member). Mr Zhuang was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director in January 2005.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (“Mr Chan”), aged 51, is the chief
finance officer of the Group. Mr Chan qualified as a certified
general accountant (CGA) in Canada in 1988. He is a member
of the Certified General Accountants Association of Canada
and is employed by the Company on a full time basis as a
qualified accountant pursuant to Rule 3.24 of the Listing Rules.
Mr Chan has more than 15 years of financial management
experience and has worked as, amongst other positions, the chief
finance officer of E-Mice Solutions (HK) Limited and Chinatron
Group Holdings Limited, the financial controller of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited and the finance director of
EMI (Hong Kong) Ltd and had also held a financial management
position in Merrell Dow Pharmaceuticals (Canada) Inc. Mr Chan
obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts from York University, Canada
in 1979 and a bachelor’'s degree in administrative studies with
honours from the same university in 1982. Mr Chan joined SIM
Technology (HK) in July 2004.
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Mr Li Chengjun (“Mr Tony Li"), aged 35, is the chief executive
officer of the business operation headquarter of the Group. Mr
Tony Li joined the Group in August 2007, and is responsible for
overseeing the PRC operation and management of the Group.
Mr Tony Li has 11 years of experience in technology, sales and
marketing, and management. Before joining the Group, Mr Tony
Li held a senior position in the Wireless and Terminal Department
of Shenzhen Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd., and was responsible
for the R&D of mobile handset, and sales and marketing. Mr
Tony Li obtained a master degree in engineering from the Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics in 1997.

28 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2007

NmoooOoo3s000o0ooooon
gooooooo0ooooooboooooooDo
gooooooooooooooOooooooo
gooO0oo0oo0llogooooooooooo
gooooooooooooooboOooooooo
goooooOoooooboOooOoobooooooo
gooobooooooooOooooooooon
000000000000000



Mr Li Zhemin (“Mr Li"), aged 35, is the general manager of the
TD-SCDMA business unit of the Group. Mr Li has over 10 years
of experience in R&D and technical management in the fields of
mobile phone and mobile telecommunication technology. Before
joining the Group in December 2006, Mr Li held senior technical
and administrative positions in various large international
telecommunication companies, including Motorola (China)
Electronices Ltd., Alcatel Shanghai Bell Co., Ltd. and Analog
Devices, Inc. Mr Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering
from XiDian University, specializing in electronic engineering.

Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Ms Xu Hong (“Ms Xu”), aged 38, is the general manager of
the Supply Chain Department of the Group. In 1991, Ms Xu
joined Sunrise Technology (HK) as the person-in-charge for the
northern region in China and was responsible for the sales and
marketing activities in this region. Following the acquisition of
Sunrise Technology (HK) by Avnet in May 2001, Ms Xu served as
the IMS sales managing director of Avnet Inc in the PRC. From
2005 onward, Ms Xu was the OEM sales managing director of
Avnet's operations in Hong Kong and the PRC. Ms Xu has over 16
years of experience in supply chain management and electronic
components sales management. In early 2006, Ms Xu left Avnet
Inc and joined the Group. Ms Xu is attending MBA courses jointly
held by Peking University and Duke University.
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Mr Shen Jianguo (“Mr Shen”), aged 42, is the co-general
manager of the module business unit of the Group. Mr Shen has
over 15 years of experience in marketing and sales of electronic
components and 6 years of experience in software-related work.
Before joining the Group in January 2004, Mr Shen was the sales
general manager of the South China’s operations of Chinatronic
Technology Limited, a subsidiary of Avnet Inc.. Mr Shen
obtained a bachelor’s degree from Nantong Vocational College,
specializing in application of electronic technique.
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Mr Tsang Shiu Keung, aged 40, is the vice president of the
Group. Mr Tsang Shiu Keung is responsible for driving the
international business growth of wireless module and machine
to machine application. Mr Tsang Shiu Keung brings years of
leadership and business experience from other multi-national
companies. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Tsang Shiu Keung
has worked in various financial management positions at Intel
supporting new product launch. Mr Tsang Shiu Keung obtained
a bachelor of science degree in Mechanical Engineering
from California Polytechnic and a master degree in Business
Administration from the Marshall School of Business, University
of Southern California.
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Ms Wong Tik (*“Ms Wong”) CPA, aged 35, is the company
secretary and finance manager of SIM Technology (HK). Ms
Wong joined SIM Technology (HK) on 1 April 2005 and is
responsible for the financial reporting of the Group. Ms Wong
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on 29
February 2008. Ms Wong is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 10
years of experience in the field of Accounting. Ms Wong obtained
the Honours Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College in 1995.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Group’s annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 50.

An interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per share amounting to
HK$45,469,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year. The
Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents per share to the shareholders on the register of members on 7 May
2008, amounting to HK$37,897,000, and the retention of the remaining
profit for the year of HK$157,349,000.

The payment of final dividend is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2007 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2005, 2006 and 2007 are set out on page 119 to 120 of the
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND
USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment and land use rights of the Group are set out in notes 16 and
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2007 were approximately HK$225,571,000 (2006:
HK$187,977,000), being the contributed surplus of approximately
HK$193,846,000 (2006: HK$193,846,000) add accumulated profits of
approximately HK$31,725,000 (2006: less losses of HK$5,869,000).

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying

Mr Wong Cho Tung

Mr Tsang Hen Loon, Raymond
Mr Zhang Jianping

Mr Wong Hei, Simon

Mr Wong Sun

Ms Tang Rongrong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Heng Kwoo Seng

Mr Wang Chengwei

Mr Zhuang Xingfang

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr Wong
Cho Tung, Mr Tsang Hen Loon, Raymond, Mr Zhang Jianping and Mr
Wong Hei, Simon will retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares and debentures of
the Company or the shares, underlying shares and debentures of any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (“SFQ”")), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as

follows:

(@) Long position in the shares of the Company and the shares of

associated corporations of the Company
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(@) 0OO0O0O0OO00O0OoOooOOoOOoOOd

Approximate
percentage of
interest in

Total number the corporation

Name of director Name of corporation Nature of interest of ordinary shares ooooo
good good good ooood goooo
(note 3)
0ooo3d
Mr Wong Cho Tung Company Corporate interest 910,000,000 60.03%
ooooo ooo (note 1)
ooooooo1d
Company Family interest (note 1) 320,000 0.02%
goo ooooooo1d
Info Dynasty Group Personal interest 1,000 49.95%
Limited (“Info Dynasty”) oooo
Ms Yeung Man Ying Company Corporate interest 910,000,000 60.03%
ooooo ooo (note 2)
ooooooo2d
Company Personal interest 320,000 0.02%
goo good
Info Dynasty Personal interest 1,000 49.95%

good
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Name of director
ooood

Mr Wong Hei, Simon
oooo

Name of corporation
gooad

Info Dynasty

Nature of interest
oooo

Personal interest
ooood

Total number

Approximate
percentage of
interest in

the corporation

of ordinary shares ooogo
ooooad goodo

(note 3)

ooo3d
1 0.05%
1 0.05%

1,500,000 0.10%
1,500,000 0.10%
186,000 0.01%

Mr Wong Sun Info Dynasty Personal interest

oood oood

Mr Tsang Hen Loon, Company Personal interest
Raymond ooo gooad

ooooo

Mr Zhang Jianping Company Personal interest

ooooo ooo oood

Ms Tang Rongrong Company Personal interest

ooooo ooo oood

Notes: oood

1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting 1.

power of Info Dynasty. Mr Wong is therefore deemed to be interested in all the
841,175,000 shares held by Info Dynasty in the Company. Both Intellipower
Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited (“Simcom (BVI)”) are
wholly-owned by Mr Wong and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the
48,825,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares held by Intellipower and Simcom
(BVI) in the Company, respectively. Mr Wong is the spouse of Ms Yeung Man Ying
and is therefore taken to be interested in the interests of his spouse by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

Ms Yeung Man Ying, the spouse of Mr Wong (“Mrs Wong”), controls more than
one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore deemed to
be interested in all the 841,175,000 shares held by Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is the
spouse of Mr Wong and is therefore taken to be interested in the interests of her
spouse by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Calculation is based on the issued share capital of 1,515,880,000 shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2007.
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(b)  Share options (b) OO0
Approximate
Total percentage of
number of interest in
Name of Number of underlying the corporation
Name of director corporation Nature of interest share options ordinary shares goooo
oooo oooo oooo ooooo opoooo ooooo
(note)
oooog
Mr Tsang Hen Loon, Company Personal interest 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.10%
Raymond ooo oooo
goooo
Mr Zhang Jianping Company Personal interest 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.10%
goooo ooo oooo
Ms Tang Rongrong Company Personal interest 464,000 464,000 0.03%
aoooo ooo oooo
Note: goood

Calculation is based on the issued share capital of 1,515,880,000 shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2007.

As at 31 December 2007, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporation.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options are set out in note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was

entered into or existing during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2007, as far as is known to the Directors and chief
exectives of the Company, the interests or short position of other persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder
oooo

Info Dynasty

Note: Calculation is based on the issued share capital of 1,515,880,000 shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2007.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors are independent.
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Approximate

Number percentage

of shares of interest in

in the Company the Company

ooood gooooono
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(Note)
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the human resources department and seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence of the

employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to factors including the Group’s operating results, responsibilities
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market

statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note

32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in

note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based
on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For year ended 31 December 2007, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 53.89% of the Group’s total sales and sales attributable
to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 20.94% of

the Group’s total sales.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007, the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 46.71% of the Group’s total purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted for

approximately 22.75% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year did any Director, any associate of a Director or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an interest in any

of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF BEST PRACTICES

The Company and its Directors confirm, to their best knowledge, that
the Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of the
Code of Corporate Governance Practices (“Corporate Governance Code”)

contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. After specific enquiry by the
Company, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended
31 December 2007.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2007 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to
retire and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-appointment at the

Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Man Ying
Chairman

Hong Kong

13 March 2008

38 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2007

gboboooboooooboooooobobo
O0O00O00Ob00000000046.71%0
gboboooooooboooboobobobo
000 22.75%0

gobooocooooocoooooooooboo
ooooooposS»oo0o0oooooooo
ooooocoooobocooooooooobo
ooooooooo

oboooobooad
00000000000000000000

ooooooooMooooooooooo
MoooooboooOmoooooboo

gbobooooooobooobooboboobo
gooboooboooooooboooooo
ggoooooooooooobobooboobo
ooooooooooooOoooooooo
oo

oo
00000000000000000000

gbobooobooboe.gbOoooooboobo
ooooocooooooooocoooooboo
goooooo

gooao

ooo
oo
od

oooooooodoo



Corporate Governance Report
oodoo

The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to
shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted
by the Group emphasize a Board with high quality, sound internal
control, transparency, accountability and independence.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the Company
by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and effective
manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

Setting the Company’s mission and values;
Formulating strategic directions of the Company;
Reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate
performance;

4. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management and board members; and

5. Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems
for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.

Board composition and practices

As at 31 December 2007, the Board comprised seven executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors and the relationships among them are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on pages 23 to 30 of
this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
section, none of the Directors has any connection (including financial,
business or family relationship) with each other as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules.
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The roles of the chairman (Ms Yeung Man Ying) are separated from
those of the president (Mr Wong Hei, Simon) in order to reinforce their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman is responsible for developing strategic direction and
development of the Group and the president, working with and
supported by the executive Directors, is responsible for managing the
Group’s business affairs, including the implementation of strategies
adopted by the Board and attending to the formulation and successful
implementation of Group’s policies and assuming full accountability to the
Board for all Group’s operations.

The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the
assessment of independence of directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management include
the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by the Board
and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board before public
reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of
corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-Laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely
basis of major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including
relevant rules and regulations. Directors shall have full access to
information on the Group and are able to obtain independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors. No request was
made by any Director for such independent professional advice in
2007. The company secretary of the Company shall prepare minutes
and keep records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all
Board meetings, which will be available for inspection by Directors upon
request.
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The Board held four meetings in 2007 with attendance rate of 100%.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board is
responsible for nominating appropriate person, either to fill in casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors for election by
shareholders at the general meeting. The existing Directors were
appointed prior to the listing of the Company in 2005 (“Listing”) and four
of them had retired in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and
were re-appointed by the shareholders of the Company at the last annual
general meeting held on 27 April 2007 and since the Listing, the Board
did not have any meeting to nominate any new Director.

As and when circumstances required, the Board will meet to discuss
nomination of new directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Board will consider criteria such as the candidate’s
qualifications, experience, expertise and knowledge as well as the
requirements under the Listing Rules.

To reflect the Corporate Governance Code, a special resolution has been
passed at the last annual general meeting of the Company to amend
Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws of the Company such that any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy)
or until the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the
case of an addition to the Board) and shall then be eligible for re-election
at that meeting.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws of the Company
provides that one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years at
each annual general meeting. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting
at which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who
have been longest in office since their last reelection or appointment
but as between persons who become or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are
also responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements
in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
applicable accounting standards.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

BY DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code. Having made specific

enquiry of all Directors, that all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for the
period covered by the annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its goals of providing the
packages needed to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality
required to run the Company successfully.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i) making
recommendations to the Directors on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Directors from time to time; and (iv) considering and approving the
grant of share options to eligible participants pursuant to the share option
schemes adopted or to be adopted by the Company. Terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee which have been adopted by the Board
are available on the Company’s website.
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The Remuneration Committee had three meetings in 2007 which was
attended by all members of the Remuneration Committee and the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management of the Group.

No Directors took part in any discussion about his or her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, two of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Wang Chengwei
and Mr Zhuang Xingfang and one executive Director, being Mr Wong
Cho Tung. They have substantial experience in human resources
management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Zhuang
Xingfang, an independent non-executive Director.

Executive Directors, assisted by the Group’s Human Resources
department, are responsible for reviewing all relevant remuneration
information and obtaining market conditions in addition to considering
the performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
propose to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and approval,
remuneration packages for Directors and senior management. Executive
Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of their own
remuneration.

The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus
and/or share options.

On 31 May 2005, the Company entered into a service agreement
with each executive Director for a period of three years which may be
terminated by either party by serving on the other party prior written notice
of at least three months, provided that such notice shall not expire earlier
than the end of the first year after the first day on which dealings in the
Company'’s shares commence on the Stock Exchange (30 June 2005).

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive
Directors has completed 12 months of services.

Corporate Governance Report
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Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options to executive
Directors in accordance with the share option schemes adopted by the
Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying, Mr
Wong Cho Tung, Mr Wong Sun) is entitled to a discretionary bonus
as determined by the Remuneration Committee by reference to the
performance of the Group and the Director. Mr Tsang Hen Loon,
Raymond is further entitled to an annual fixed sum bonus equal to one
month of the average monthly salary to be paid on a pro-rata basis for
each completed year of services.

Each of Mr Heng Kwoo Seng, Mr Wang Chengwei and Mr Zhuang
Xingfang entered into a letter of appointment on 24 January 2008 with
the Company to serve as the independent non-executive Director for one
year commencing on 25 January 2008 and subject to the right of the
independent non-executive Director or the Company to terminate the
appointment of the independent non-executive Director at any time by
giving at least one month’s notice in writing.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written

terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C3 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent
review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system of the Group and oversea the audit
process and other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee met twice in 2007 with 100% attendance rate by all
members of the Audit Committee to review with senior management and
the Company’s external auditors the internal and external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and discussed auditing, internal
controls, risk management and financial reporting matters (including the
interim and annual financial statements for 2007 before recommending
them to the Board for approval).

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Heng Kwoo Seng, Mr Wang Chengwei and Mr
Zhuang Xingfang. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Heng Kwoo Seng
who has professional qualifications in accountancy.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company paid Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the Company, HK$1.92
million and HK$0.2 million as audit fees and non-audit related fees
respectively.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on page 48 to 49 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control systems have been designed to allow the Directors
to monitor the Group’s overall financial position, safeguard its assets,
provide reasonable assurance against fraud and errors, and to manage
the risks in failing to achieve the Group’s objectives.

The Group has a defined scope of authority governing activities of the
Directors and senior management. Directors monitor the business
activities closely and review monthly financial results operations. The
Group from time to time updates and improves the internal controls, and
has recently issued an updated Authority Limits Guide to all appropriate
personnel.

The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review them
at regular intervals. The Directors manages risks by strategic planning,
appointment of appropriately qualified and experienced personnel at
senior management positions, monitoring the Group’s performance
regularly, maintaining effective control over capital expenditure and
investments, and setting a high standard of code of conduct for
employees to follow.
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INTERNAL AUDIT
During 2007, the Group established an Internal Audit Department which

conducts audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to provide
the Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control systems of
the Group are effective and the risks associated with the achievement of
business objectives are being managed properly. The department also
conducts other projects and investigation work as required.

The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system had been
in operation having reviewed the material controls and all other major
components of the internal control system of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2007.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds to
requests for information and queries from the investment community by
the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to provide clear and full information of the Group
to shareholders through sending the shareholders the Company’s interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and when
appropriate and providing additional information to shareholders in the
“Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a good opportunity for
communications between the Board and its shareholders. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting. Notice of the
Annual General Meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders at
least 21 days before the meeting and the said notice is also published in at
least one English newspaper and one Chinese newspaper in Hong Kong,
and will also be available on the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
websites. The Chairman and Directors will answer questions on the
Group’s business at the meeting. External auditors will also attend the
annual general meeting.

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board
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for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

Pursuant to Bye-law 66 of the Bye-laws of the Company, at any general
meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a
show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result
of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll)
demanded:

(i) by the chairman of such meeting; or

(i) by at least three members present in person (or in the case of a
member being a corporation by its duly authorised representative)
or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(iii) by any member or members present in person (or in the case of a
member being a corporation by its duly authorised representative)
or by proxy and representing not less than one-tenth of the total
voting rights of all the members having the right to vote at the
meeting; or

(iv) by a member or members present in person (or in the case of a
member being a corporation by its duly authorised representative)
or by proxy and holding shares in the Company conferring a right to
vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has
been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid
up on all the shares conferring that right; or

(v)  if required by the rules of the designated Stock Exchange, by any
Director or Director who, individually or collectively, hold proxies in
respect of shares representing five per cent. (5%) or more of the
total voting rights at such meeting if required by the rules of the
designated Stock Exchange.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s registrars and the results of the
poll will be published on the Company’s website. Financial and other
information is made available on the Company’s website and updated
regularly. Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be
sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered address or by e-mail to the Company’s website.
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Deloitte.
=g

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of SIM Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 118, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2007, and
of the Group’s financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

13 March 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
HRERERERN

For the year ended 31 December 2007
000D000o0ooOoooooooo

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Research and development expenses
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Dividends

Earnings per share (HK cents)
Basic

Diluted

50 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2007
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Notes
oo

10

12

13

14

15

2007 2006
ooooo ooooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
2,896,996 3,418,864
(2,486,378) (2,914,878)
410,618 503,986
102,269 91,044
(98,156) (76,032)
(71,897) (50,019)
(85,635) (77,098)
(576) (313)
256,623 391,568
(15,908) (18,695)
240,715 372,873
204,375 312,989
15.9 24.8
15.8 24.2




Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Available-for-sale investments

Goodwill
Deposit paid for purchase
of land use right

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Notes and bills receivable
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and notes payables
Other payables, deposits
received and accruals
Tax payable

Net current assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
Non-current liability
Deferred tax liabilities

ooooo
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 118 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2008 and are

signed on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG
ooo

DIRECTOR

oo

Consolidated Balance Sheet
HRERERERERERE

Notes
on

16
17
18
19
20
21

23
24
24

24
25

26

26

27

19

At 31 December 2007

ooboooooooooon

2007 2006
ooooo oonooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
198,386 157,231
76,903 10,484
122,663 113,356
3,592 3,031
86,911 -
58,928 -
42,372 7,465
589,755 291,567
520,252 462,736
49,147 110,307
45,171 18,787
130,446 127,820
620,440 822,696
1,365,456 1,542,346
484,092 576,449
201,190 119,349
18,450 10,284
703,732 706,082
661,724 836,264
1,251,479 1,127,831
151,588 150,833
1,093,413 969,314
1,245,001 1,120,147
6,478 7,684
1,251,479 1,127,831

oooso01l18s00ooooooooooooon
ooooOoOoOooooooOoOoOooOooooOoDOn

TSANG HEN LOON, RAYMOND

ooo
DIRECTOR
oo
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ooooo

For the Year ended 31 December 2007
000D000o0ooOoooooooo

At 1 January 2006

Exchange difference arising on
translation of foreign operations
recognised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income and
expenses for the year

Issue of new shares due to exercise
of share options
Transfer upon exercise of share options
Transfer
Recognition of equity settled share
based payments
Dividends paid

At 31 December 2006

oooooo
ooooo

ooooooooo
ooooooooo
0ooooo
ooooo

ooooooooo
ooooo

0oooooo
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ooooooooo
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Total equity

attributable

to equity

Statutory Share holders of

surplus option the parent

Share Share reserve Other reserve  Revaluation  Translation Accumulated ooo
capital  premium oo reserve ooo reserve reserve profits ~ OO0D
o0 gooo oooo gooo oo gooo gooo gooo gooo
HKS000  HK$000  HK000  HKBOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKFOOO  HK$000  HK$000
ooo ooa ooa ooo ooo ooa ooo ooo ooo

(Note a) (Note b)
oaban — 0o0s0

150000 454,160 2981 97,091 6,670 - 6693 282277 1019872
- - - - - - 2728 - 2728

- - - - - - - 32873 32803

- - - - - - 2728 312813 395,601

833 7,660 - - - - - - 8493

- 1,677 - - (1677) - - - -

- - 3,732 - - - = (3,732) -

- - - - 9,170 - - - 9,170

= = = = = = - (312989 (312,989)
150833 463497 26,713 97,091 14,163 - 20421 338429 1120147




Exchange difference arising on
translation of foreign operations
recognised directly in equity

Fair value changes on available-for-sale
investments

Net income recognised directly
in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income for the year

Issue of new shares due to exercise
of share options
Transfer upon exercise of share options
Transfer upon forfeiture of share options
Transfer
Recognition of equity settled share
based payments
Dividends paid

At 31 December 2007

Notes:

goooooooo
goooooooo
oooooo
ooooooo
oooooo

0ooooooo
oooooo
ooooo

oooooooooo
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
goooooo

For the Year ended 31 December 2007
00bO00o0oooooooOooOoDOo

Total equity

attributable

to equity

Statutory Share holders of

surplus option the parent

Share Share reserve Other reserve  Revaluation  Translation Accumulated ooo
capital  premium 0o reserve ooo reserve reserve profits ~ 0O00
oo gooo gooo gooo oo oooo gooo gooo gooo
HKS000  HK$000  HKJ000  HKFOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKFOO0  HK$000  HK$000
gooo ooa aooo ooo ooo ooa ooo ooo ooa

(Note a) (Note b)
oaban  00omos0

- - - - - - 43402 - 43402

- - - - - 2371 - - 29371

- - - - - 29371 43402 - 72773

- - - - - - - 20715 240,715

- - - = - 29371 43402 240715 313488

795 6,950 - - - - - - 7,705

- 8433 - - (8433) - - - -

- - - - (2,075) - - 2,075 -

- - 886 - - - = (886) =

- - - - 8,036 - - - 8,036

- - - - - - - (204375)  (204375)
15158 478830 27599 97,091 11,691 29371 72823 35988 1,245,001

oono

(a) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, the
subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net profit
after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund. The reserve fund
can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors of the relevant
subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or

increase capital.

(b) Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited.

(a) 00000000 0D 000000000 00000
god0ooO0O00oO0oO0O0o0OoO0oO0ooOooooon
00010%0000000000000000000
ooooooO0o0oooOo0ooOoOoOoooOooooon
oOooOooO0oOooooo

(b) gooo0ooO0oO0boOoOO0OO0OooOOoO0OooOOoOoOooOoon
OOooO0oo00oO0o0ooooa
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HRERERERERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2007
000D000o0ooOoooooooo

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense
(Reverse of) allowances for bad and
doubtful debts
Write-down of inventories
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Increase in inventories
Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) decrease in notes and
bills receivable
Increase in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
(Decrease) increase in trade payables
Increase in other payables,
deposits received and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of land use rights
Deposit paid for purchase of land use right
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Expenditure on intangible assets
Purchase of available-for-sale investments

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
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Note
oo

28

2007 2006
ooooo ooooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
gog ooo
256,623 391,568
576 313
172,260 91,249
(112) 2,687
8,036 9,170
(1,779) 917
39,657 11,016
(8,315) (10,658)
466,946 496,262
(93,718) (71,343)
62,537 15,927
(26,384) 83,246
(2,312) (42,442)
(92,357) 244,060
78,732 25,077
393,444 750,787
8,315 10,658
(10,737) (9,680)
391,022 751,765
(56,163) (71,190)
(59,399) =
(42,372) (7,465)
(68,190) 2,110
311 53
(138,111) (137,130)
(57,540) =
(421,464) (213,622)




FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of shares

Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Dividends paid

Interest paid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash
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Note
oo

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

ooooooo

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

2007 2006
ooooo ooooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
7,705 8,493
100,000 -
(100,000) (9,615)
(204,375) (312,989)
(576) (313)
(197,246) (314,424)
(227,688) 223,719
822,696 579,880
25,432 19,097
620,440 822,696
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
000D000o0ooOoooooooo

GENERAL INFORMATION

godad

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) with limited liability. Its ultimate and immediate
holding company is Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info
Dynasty”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the introduction section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar, as the directors consider that
it is a more appropriate presentation for a company listed in
Hong Kong and for the convenience of the shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacturing,
design and development and sale of liquid crystal display
(“LCD”) modules, mobile handset solutions, and wireless
communication module solutions.

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs")

O0oopooOooOolklooomooog
OO0O0000ooooooooooooood
OO000oooooooooooooood
Info Dynasty Group LimitedD Info Dynasty[1T]
0000o0ooooooooooooood
oooooooog

oooOooooooooooocooooon
oobDo0ooOoOooODOoOoOoOoOooOoooon
oooooooooo

oooooooooooooocooooon
ooboDoO0ooOoOooOooOooOoOooooon
oooooooooooooooooooan
ooo

ooooobbobd

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amended International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”), new IFRSs and interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC”) of the IASB that are effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2007.
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APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (cCONTINUED)

2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

oodoobbobomoo

IAS 1 (Amendment)
0o00ooOoOo1oooo0

IFRS 7
ooooOOooooo7o

IFRIC 7

oooooooooooo70

IFRIC 8
ooo0O000o0oooosn

IFRIC 9
O00ooO0oOooOooooooon

IFRIC 10
oooO0oooooooonoioo

The adoption of the new IFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting period have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards or interpretations that were issued but are not yet
effective.

IAS 1 (Revised)
000000 l1moooa

IAS 23 (Revised)
Jo00O0oo0oOo2300000

IAS 27 (Revised)
J00d0oOoo27000000

IAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

0000000320010 O0000

IFRS 2 (Amendment)
D0000oO0oDoDbObO2000000

Capital disclosures
oooo

Financial instruments: Disclosures
ooooooo

Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

O00000oooo290000000000

ooooooooooo

Scope of IFRS 2
oooooooooz2o00

Reassessment of embedded derivatives
ooooooooog

Interim financial reporting and impairment
ooooooooo

ooboooooooooooocooooon
oobOooooooooooOoooooon
ooooooOoOoooOooooooooo

ooboocOoooooooooOoocoooooo
ooooooooooo

Presentation of financial statements !
gooooot

Borrowing costs !
oooot

Consolidated and separate financial statements ?
ooooooooo?

Puttable financial instruments and obligations
arising on obligation !
oood00Doooooooooogt

Vesting conditions and cancellation *
ooooooot
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

2. APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (cONTINUED)

oodoobboomoon

IFRS 3 (Revised)
00000oOoooOoO3mooon

IFRS 8
ooooooooos8no

IFRIC 11
ooooooooooool11o

IFRIC 12
ooooooooooooil20

IFRIC 13
oooo0oO0oooooooi130

IFRIC 14

oooO0O0000booo0O 140

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
L 0000000000000 0O0O0ODOOooooon

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

2 00000DO0O0O00O0OOOODoOOOoOoDOOO

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007.
9 00000DO0O0O00O0OOOODoOOOoOoDOOO

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.
4 00000DO0O0O00O0OOOODoOOOoOoDOOO

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008.

2 000000000000 0000000000D

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these new standards, amendments and interpretations will
have no material effect on the results of the operations and
financial position of the Group, except that the effects of the
application of IFRS 3 (Revised) and IAS 27 (Revised) are not
reasonably estimable.
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Business combinations 2
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Operating segments !
oooot

IFRS 2: Group and treasury share transactions 2
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Service concession arrangements 4
ooooooo

Customer loyalty programmes °
oooooooos®

IAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and
their interaction 4
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

goooog

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the
amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is
able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. 0000 ono

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted
for using the purchase method. The cost of the business
combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values
(at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 Business
combinations are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal
groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value
less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of
the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiaries at the
date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

oooomadg

Goodwill (conNTINUED)
Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Value Added Tax (“VAT”) refund is recognised as income
when the Group’s rights to receive the VAT refund has been
established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
000o0o0o0ooboOooOOooDOooOooo

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

goooomaad

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year. Exchange differences arising are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rate that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

oooomadg

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease terms.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Government subsidies
Government subsidies are recognised as income when
received and the conditions for the grants are met.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

goooomaad

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to
write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, over their estimated
useful lives after taking into account of their estimated
residual value.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item
is derecognised.

Land use rights
Land use rights represent the prepaid lease payments
of leasehold interests in land under operating lease
arrangements and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

3. D0Oo0oDOmono

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are incurred.

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
useful life, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the
asset is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. 0000 ono

(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets
is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Technical know-how acquired in a business combination
comprises the rights to use certain technologies for the
manufacture of mobile handset solutions and wireless
communication module solutions.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. In addition, intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

3. D0Oo0oDOmono

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified to either available-
for-sale investments or loans and receivables. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. 0000 ono

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, notes and bills receivable, other receivables
and deposits and bank balances) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been impacted.

For available-for-sale investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

3. D0Oo0oDOmono

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 120 days.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. 0000 ono

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest rate.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables
and deposits received are initially measured at fair values and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

3. D0Oo0oDOmono

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment
to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. DODO0ODOOODODOOOO

UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet dates,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets is impaired requires
an estimation of the future cash flows expected to arise from
the products developed and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
The carrying amount of intangible assets at 31 December
2007 was HK$122,663,000 (2006: HK$113,356,000) with
no impairment loss recognised.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The discount rate
represents rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.
As at 31 December 2007, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$58,928,000. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 22.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as
to maintain creditor and market confidence and to substain
future development of business. The Group defines the
capital of the Group as the total shareholders’ equity.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. O00OOO
Categories of financial instruments oooooo
2007 2006
ooooo goooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Financial assets gooag
Loans and receivables goooooao
(including cash and omooooo
cash equivalents) ooooooooo 832,676 1,065,051
Available-for-sale investments ooooooono 86,911 -
Financial liabilities gooag
Amortised cost gooooo 523,195 591,194

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables and payables, notes and bills receivable, other
receivables and payables, deposits received and bank
balances. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 25% of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 75% of costs
are denominated in the group entity’s functional currency.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cONTINUED)

6. DO00OMmMIOO

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
reporting date are as follows:

United states dollars (“USD”) oo

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in RMB against USD. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against USD. For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and the
balances below would be negative.

Profit or loss opoooo

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
receivables and payables at year end in the Group.
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Assets Liabilities
od od
2007 2006 2007 2006
O0o0o0d0d O0oooo ODOoooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooagd ooo
137,038 198,505 337,175 326,792

oooo0ooOoOoOoocOoOoOcOoOooOooooao
oooocooocoOoOocOoOoocoooooon
oooooooo

oooonoo
oooocOooocOooooOooOoooOooooao
05000005% 0000000000
ooooooOooooooooooooon
oooDoO0ooOoOoOooOoO0ooOocooooon
oooOoO0ooOoOooooooooooooon
O0000000oooosS5»0000000
O000O00000000000b5%000
ooooooooobOocOoOoocoooooon
5000 000000000000000
oooooooooo

2007 2006
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6. DO00OMmMIDOO

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Price risk

The Group’s available-for-sale investments are measured at
fair value at each balance sheet date. Therefore, the Group
is exposed to potential loss in market value resulting from an
adverse change in prices. The management would manage
this exposure be closely monitoring the performance of the
investments and market conditions. The management will
consider diversifying the portfolio of investments as they
consider appropriate.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5%
higher/lower, investment valuation reserve would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$4,346,000 for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables, notes and bills receivable and
bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2007 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group’s bank balances and cash are deposited with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and the Group has limited
the exposure to any single financial institution. The credit
risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with good credit-rating.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cONTINUED) 6. 00 oQd

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2007, five
(2006: three) customers amounted HK$29,061,000 (2006:
HK$58,940,000) comprised over 50% (2006: 50%) of the
Group’s trade receivables. These customers are within the
same mobile phone technology industry in the PRC. The
management closely monitors the subsequent settlement of
the customers and does not grant long credit period to the
counterparties. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices. The fair value of
other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with general accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis, using prices or rates from
observable market transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values at the balance sheet date.

REVENUE
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Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold net of returns.
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goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. O00OOO0ooOoa
SEGMENTS
Business segments oooo
The Group currently organised into three revenue streams- 0oDoo0ooo0oooOoDOoDoooooooOoon
sale of mobile handset solutions, sale of LCD modules and 00000d00ooooooooooooon
sale of wireless communication module solutions. These Dd0dDo00o00ooooooooooon
revenue streams are the basis on which the Group reports its oooooooooo

primary segment information.

Segment information about these businesses is presented ooooooooooooono
below:
Income statement ooo
For the year ended 31 December 2007 ooooooooocooooononon
Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Sale of module
handset LCD solutions
solutions modules 0o0oo
oooo oooo aoon Others Consolidated
0ooooo oooo 0ooo 00 0o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo 0oo ooo ooo
Revenue oo
External sales ooooo 1,797,001 461,477 638,518 - 2,896,996
Result oo
Segment result goooo 145,658 10,995 117,855 (268) 274,240
Interest income ooon 8315
Unallocated corporate expenses ooooooo (25,356)
Finance costs oooo (576)
Profit before taxation ooooao 256,623
Taxation oo (15,908)
Profit for the year goooo 240,715
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. 0000000000
SEGMENTS (coNTINUED)
Business segments (CONTINUED) ooomoo
Balance sheet ooooo
At 31 December 2007 ooooooooooono
Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Sale of module
handset LCD solutions
solutions modules oooo
ooono oooo aooo Consolidated
oooooo oooo oooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo ooo
Assets oo
Segment assets goooo 222,581 268,735 94,988 586,304
Unallocated corporate assets oooooao
oooo 1,365,315
Consolidated total assets oooooa 1,951,619
Liabilities oo
Segment liabilities goooo - 109,301 - 109,301
Liabilities attributable to business 0000000000
segment other than saleof LCD OOOOOOOOO
modules goooooo 544,802
Unallocated corporate liabilities oooooooo 31,179

Consolidated total liabilities gooooo 685,282
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. 00000 OIaOono
SEGMENTS (coNTINUED)
Business segments (CONTINUED) ooomoo
Other information oooo
For the year ended 31 December 2007 oooooooooooooonoon
Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Sale of module
handset LCD solutions
solutions modules gooo
oooo oooo oooo Others Consolidated
oooooo oooo oooo oo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oono oono 000 ooo oao
Additions of property, plant goooo
and equipment 0ooooo 2,759 19,825 680 33,137 56,401
Additions of intangible assets o0ooooo 116,577 - 41,060 - 157,637
Depreciation of property, plant gooooo
and equipment gooooo 6,525 18,279 1231 9 26,044
Amortisation of intangible assets gooooo 113,775 - 38,953 - 152,728
Reversal of bad and doubtful debts ooooo (383) (1,396) - - (1,779)
Write-down of inventories 0oon 20,041 12,49 7,120 - 39,657
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. D00O0O0OO0MODOO
SEGMENTS (coNTINUED)
Business segments (CONTINUED) ooomoo
Income statement ooo
For the year ended 31 December 2006 oooooooooooooonoon
Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Sale of module
handset LCD solutions
solutions modules 0o0oo
oooo oooo oooo Others Elimination  Consolidated
oooooo oooo 0o0oo 0o 0o 0o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo 0oo ooo ooo
Revenue oo
External sales ooooo 2,161,682 690,422 550,227 16,533 - 3,418,864
Inter-segment sales ooooooa - 4,551 - - (4,551) -
2,161,682 694,973 550,227 16,5633 (4,551) 3,418,864
Result oo
Segment result ooooo 273,204 23,031 110,765 1,453 - 408,453
Interest income oooo 10,658
Unallocated corporate expenses 00000
ooo (27,230)
Finance costs oooo (313)
Profit before taxation goooo 391,568
Taxation oo (18,695)
Profit for the year ooooao 372,873
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices. goooboobooboooon
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00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. 00000 OIaOono
SEGMENTS (coNTINUED)
Business segments (CONTINUED) ooomoo
Balance sheet ooooo
At 31 December 2006 ooooooooooonon
Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Sale of module
handset LCD solutions
solutions modules aooo
oooo oooo oooo Others Consolidated
oooooo oooo oooo oo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oono oono 000 ooo oao
Assets oo
Segment assets ooooo 426,609 379,361 55,654 268 861,892
Unallocated corporate assets oooooo
oooo 968,990
Consolidated total assets gooooo 1,830,882
Liabilities oa
Segment liabilities ooooao - 179,578 - - 179,578
Liabilities attributable to goooooooo
business segment otherthansale  0O0O0C0O0000O
of LCD modules 0oooooooo 508,710
Unallocated corporate liabilities o0oooooo
7,510
Consolidated total liabilities goooo 695,798
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. 000000 OOIO0O
SEGMENTS (coNTINUED)
Business segments (CONTINUED) ooomoo
Other information oooo
For the year ended 31 December 2006 oooooooooooooonoon
Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Sale of module
handset LCD solutions
solutions modules gooo
oooo oooo oooo Others Elimination ~ Consolidated
oooooo ooono oooo oo oo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oono oao ooo ooo oono oono
Additions of property, plant ooooo
and equipment oooooo 19,681 30,363 21,142 4 - 71,190
Additions of intangible assets 0oooon 120,842 - 21,127 - - 141,969
Depreciation of property, oooooo
plant and equipment goooaoo 1,826 10,488 2816 2 - 15,132
Amortisation of intangibleassets 000000 69,092 1,306 5437 - - 75,835
(Reversal of) allowancesforbad ~ 00 MO0 0O
and doubtful debts 1,025 (108) - - - 917
Write-down of inventories 0ooo 6,385 2,326 1,752 53 - 11,016
Loss on disposal of property, ooooooa
plant and equipment oooooo 1,961 44 677 5 - 2,687
Geographical segment oooo
The Group’s operations and assets are substantially located in 0ooo0ooDO0oDooooOoDoDOooooon
the PRC. Accordingly, no analysis of the carrying amount of o0o0o00DO0ODOOoDOOoOO0OoOoOoODOOoD
segment assets, additions to property, plant and equipment goboooooboobooboooo

and intangible assets is presented.
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00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

9. OTHER INCOME 9. 0O0Oad
2007 2006
goooo ooooad
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooad ooad
Refund of VAT (Note) 0oo0Doo0wooo 42,594 56,452
Government subsidies ogooaog 4,842 5,129
Interest income earned on loans and gooooooooo
receivable (including bank balances) dddoooooooo 8,315 10,658
Net foreign exchange gain ooooo 46,518 18,805
102,269 91,044
Note: Shanghai Simcom Limited ("Shanghai Simcom") and Shanghai ooooooooooobooooOomooooonm
Speedcomm Technology Limited ("Shanghai Speedcomm") are 0000CcOo00OOO0O0oO0OODmooooom
engaged in the business of distribution of self-developed and gOo0oo0ooOoOoO0o0OOOoOooOOoOOoOooOo
produced software. Under the current PRC tax regulation, it is gOo0o0o0o0ooooOooOOoOoOoOooOOoooo
entitled to a refund of VAT paid for sales of self-developed software oobooooo
in the PRC.
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. 0000
2007 2006
goooo ooood
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooad ooad
Interests on borrowings wholly oooooooood
repayable within five years opoooo 576 313
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g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' 11. 0000000
EMOLUMENTS
Directors' emoluments ooog
The emolument paid or payable to each of the Directors were gooooDoooooooooono
as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2007
go0oooOoooooooooon

Retirement
benefits
schemes
Directors’ Salaries and Share-based contributions Total
fees allowances Bonus payments 0000 emoluments
oooo ooooo oo oooo oooo ooag
(Note)
oooo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ood oo ooo oo oo ooo
Executive Directors oooo
Ms Yeung Man Ying goooo - - - - - -
Mr Wong Cho Tung ooooo - - - - - -
Mr Tsang Hen Loon, ooooo
Raymond - 2,080 980 361 96 3,517
Mr Zhang Jianping goooo - 498 249 361 38 1,146
Mr Wong Hei, Simon 0oooo - 498 249 - - 747
Mr Wong Sun gooo - - - - - -
Ms Tang Rongrong gooono - 224 174 90 38 526
Non-executive Directors ooooo
Mr Heng Kwoo Seng goooo 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wang Chengwei goooo 156 - - - - 156
Mr Zhuang Xingfang gooono 156 - - - - 156
468 3,300 1,652 812 172 6,404
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00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' 11. 00000000000
EMOLUMENTS (conTINUED)

Directors' emoluments (CONTINUED) ooomog

For the year ended 31 December 2006
godooooooooooooon

Retirement
benefits
schemes
Directors’ Salaries and Share-based contributions Total
fees allowances Bonus payments 0000 emoluments
gooao goooo oo gooa gooo gooo
(Note)
ooon
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
goad ooad ooad agoao ooa goad
Executive Directors gooo
Ms Yeung Man Ying ooooo - - - - - -
Mr Wong Cho Tung ogoooao - - - - - -
Mr Tsang Hen Loon, ooooo
Raymond - 2,080 1,150 579 9% 3,905
Mr Zhang Jianping oooono - 470 235 579 34 1,318
Mr Wong Hei, Simon oooo - 470 235 - - 705
Mr Wong Sun oooo - - - - - -
Ms Tang Rongrong ooooo - 211 164 145 34 554
Non-executive Directors goooo
Mr Heng Kwoo Seng goooo 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wang Chengwei ooooo 156 - - - - 156
Mr Zhuang Xingfang ooooo 156 - - - - 156
468 3,231 1,784 1,303 164 6,950
Note: Incentive performance bonus for the year ended 31 December oooooooobooooooooooooooon
2007 and 2006 were determined by the remuneration committee oooboooooonDOOoooOOoOoOoOOoon
having regard to the performance of directors and the Group's oooooooooooooooo

operating results.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES'’ 11. 0000000000
EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)
Employees' emoluments ooog
The five highest paid individuals included two (2006: two) 00000 00oO00ooOoooooooon
directors for the year ended 31 December 2007, whose 0o0o0o0o0oooomooooooooon
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of 0000000000 ooomoooon
the remaining three (2006: three) individuals are as follows: 00o00Mo0ooooooooon
2007 2006
ooooo goooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
odd ooo
Salaries and allowances goooo 2,512 2,209
Bonus oag 797 1,071
Share-based payments gooo 257 647
Retirement benefits schemes goooooono
contributions 112 115
3,678 4,042
Their emoluments were within the following bands: ooooooooooooo
2007 2006
ooooo oooono
HK$’000 HK$'000
oogd ooo
Nil to HK$1,000,000 00O 1,000,0000 O 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0010 0 O 1,500,0000 O 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 0 0 O 2,000,0000 O - 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group 000000000 OO00O0OD0ODbOOOoOon
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals 00o0o0DOoOo0o0oOoOoOoooobOooOon
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as 00D0oO00O000OO0ODOO0o0O0oDoO0OoDOoD
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived 0J00DO0oo00O0o0oDOOoO0oOoDOOoDOoD
any emoluments for both years. goodobDooooooooog
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

12. TAXATION 12. 00O
2007 2006
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
ood oood
PRC Enterprise Income Tax goooooag 18,025 14,764
Deferred tax (credit) charge (note 19) 0O O0O0O0 00O 0 O7 00 1900 (2,117) 3,931
Income tax expense for the year goooooo 15,908 18,695

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
both years as the Company and its subsidiaries have no
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Company's PRC subsidiaries, Shanghai Simcom and
Shanghai Speedcomm are entitled to an exemption from PRC
income tax for the two years starting from their first profit-
making year, followed by a 50% tax relief for the next three
years. No provision for PRC income tax has been made for
Shanghai Speedcomm for the two years ended 31 December
2007 as fiscal year ended 31 December 2006 was its first
profit making year. Shanghai Simcom is classified as Key
Production Enterprise and is entitled to use an applicable
tax rate of 10% for the two years ended 31 December 2007.
Two other subsidiaries of the Company, Shanghai Suncom
Logistics Limited (“Suncom Logistics”) and Max Vision
(Shanghai) Limited (“Shanghai Max Vision”) are entitled to
adopt a tax rate of 15% because they were registered in the
area of Shanghai Wai Gao Qiao Free Trade Zone 0 0 0 00O
00 0. Pursuant to permits issued by Shanghai Tax Authority
dated 21 April 2006 and 22 October 2007, Shanghai Sunrise
Electronic Technology Co. Ltd. ("Shanghai Sunrise") is entitled
to adopt a tax rate of 18% for the fiscal years 2006 and
2007 because it is classified as foreign investment enterprise
engaged in technology and knowledge intensive business.
The tax charge provided has been made after taking into
account these tax incentives.

ooboooooooooOooOocoooooon
ooboooooOoooOoooOocooooon
ooooo

oobooooocOooooOooocooooon
oobooooooOoooOooOocoooooon
ooooooooooOoOooOooooocooon
oobooooocoooooooooocoon
oobDoooooooOoooOooooooon
oobDoO0ooDOOoOobOOoOoOooOOoooOOooon
ooooo0oooooocoOoO0OOoOoOooOooan
oooooOoOOOoOOOOoOoOoOoCoooaon
oboo0oocOooOoocOooOooooOooDoo
O0000Mmoo00o010%»000000
oobDoooooooOoooOoooooon
000oooOoooo0OnooooOmooD
oobodnmoooooOooooooooon
O0000o0o0ooOo1%»oooooooo
ooooooooobOoOoOoocoooooon
oobooooocoooooooooocoon
ooooOooooOoOoOnoooooOmoon
Oo0o0oO0O0o0oO0o0oOoOoOoooooo18%0
oooooooooooOoooooooon
ooooOooCcOoooOoOoOoocoooooon
ooooo

0000000000 ooooooo 87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
gooooooo

For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

12. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 12. 00 OO

PRC income tax is calculated at 27% of estimated assessable
profit of the Company's other PRC subsidiaries, which is the
tax rate applicable to enterprises engaged in technology and
knowledge intensive business for both years.

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China
promulgated the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No.
63 of the President of the People's Republic of China. On
6 December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New Law
and Implementation Regulations changes the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax rate to 25% and will affect the PRC subsidiaries
of the Company from 1 January 2008. The directors consider
that the effect on the deferred tax balance is insignificant.

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

oooooo0ooOooooooooooooon
Ooo0o0027%»0000000000000
ooooooOooooooooooooo

ooooooooooooooooooon
oooo0oooOOooooooooomon
obooo0ooOoOooooOmoooOoooo
ooooooooooOoOoOoocooooon
oooooooOoooOoooOocooooon
00000000000 000000 25%0
ooooooooooooooooooon
ooooooooooooooo

oboooooobOobOooOoooooobon
ooooooo

2007 2006
ooooo goooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Profit before taxation goooo 256,623 391,568
Taxation at the PRC income tax rate 0oooooooono27%00
of 27% (2006: 27 %) 000Moooood27%0 69,288 105,723
Tax effect of expenses not ooooo
deductible for tax purpose ooooooono 8,512 8,308
Tax effect of income not taxable for oooooood
tax purpose gooooo (16,053) (17,789)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised OOOOO0O0OOOOOOO 4,653 3,617
Income tax on concessionary rate goooooooood (1,547) (3,845)
Effect of tax exemption granted ooooooooo (48,945) (77,319)
Taxation for the year goooo 15,908 18,695
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00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. 00000
2007 2006
goooo ooooad
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooad ooad
Profit for the year is arrived 00000000 oomoooon
at after charging (crediting):
Auditor's remuneration ogoooao 1,920 1,700
Amortisation of intangible assets goooono 152,728 75,835
Amortisation of land use right ooooooag 1,195 282
Depreciation of property, plant and goooooooono
equipment 26,044 19,971
Less: Amount capitalised in gooooDooooooooo
development costs (3,262) (4,839)
22,782 15,132
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, gooooDoooooooooooa
plant and equipment (112) 2,687
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts OO 000 747 917
Reversal of allowance for bad and ooooooo
doubtful debts (2,526) -
Write-down of inventories oomooooooo
(included in cost of sales) 39,657 11,016
Costs of inventories recognised oooooooooon
as expenses 2,307,945 2,827,101
Staff costs: ooooo
Directors' emoluments (note 11) oo00oooiio 6,404 6,950
Other staff costs goooooo
—Salaries and other benefits goooooooon 184,238 153,664
—Retirement benefits schemes ooooooooooon
contributions 28,618 20,134
219,260 180,748
Less: Amount capitalised in gooooDooooooooo
development costs (76,355) (70,345)
142,905 110,403
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g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

14. DIVIDENDS 14. 00O
2007 2006
goooo goooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
oono ooo
Dividends recognised as distribution goooooooooog
during the year:
2006 Final dividend, paid - HK10.5 goooooooooo
cents per share god00 10500 158,906 -
2005 Final dividend, paid - HK14.0 0oDo0ooOoooooo
cents per share 0000 i14.000 - 210,501
Interim dividend, paid - HK3.0 cents 000o0ooooo3.000
per share (2006: HK6.8 cents) MooOoOo0Oo00e68000 45,469 102,488
204,375 312,989
Final dividend, proposed - 00Do0O0D0DOoOooo2500
HK2.5 cents per share Moooooooglosoon
(2006: HK10.5 cents) (Note) Owooo 37,897 158,374
Note: The final dividend of HK2.5 cents (2006: HK10.5 cents) per share OoOo0ooo0000000O0OO0O025000000
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by oOooOolob00mMOnOO0oooooooon
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. oooooooooo
15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 0000

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent is

based on the following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the purposes of basic
and diluted earnings per share
(profit for the year)

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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2007 2006
ooooo ooooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ood ooo
oo
oooooooocooo
ooomoooooo
O 240,715 372,873
'000 ‘000
g od
oooo
ooooooooo
ooooooooo
1,514,190 1,504,923
ooo 9,276 33,358
ooooooooo
ooooooooo
1,523,466 1,538,281

ooooo
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 00 0OO0DOODO

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

COST

At 1 January 2006
Exchange differences
Additions

Transfer

Disposals

At 31 December 2006

Exchange differences
Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Disposals

At 31 December 2007

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2006
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2006

Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2007

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant
Construction improvements fixtures and Motor
in progress Buildings 0ooo 0O0ooOoo machinery vehicles Total
oooo oo oo oog  O0oooo oo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooC ooo ooo

oo
oooCoCooooog 10,300 39,409 2,841 61,062 18813 4,346 136,771
oooo 362 1,385 85 2,129 661 133 4,755
oo 17318 - 436 46,592 5894 950 71,190
0o (27,154) 27,154 - = = = -
oo = = = (434) (2.908) (528) (3,870)
oooooo
oooooooo 826 67,948 3,362 109,349 22,460 4,901 208,846
oooo 63 5,097 212 8180 1,685 326 15,563
oo 33,079 2,567 163 16,176 3,994 184 56,163
oooooo - - - 238 - - 238
oo - = = (241) = (1,238) (1,479)
oooooo
gooooooo 33,968 75,612 3,737 133,702 28139 4173 279,331
oo
gooooooooo - 1,615 1,370 23,833 2,535 1,989 31342
gooo - 112 60 1,068 113 79 1432
ooooo - 3121 1,323 13,382 1,360 785 19,971
oooooo - = = (332) (323) (475) (1,130)
oooooo
oooCooooo - 4848 2,753 37,951 3,685 2378 51,615
oooo - 465 190 3417 342 152 4,566
ooooo - 3,289 473 19,340 2,141 801 26,044
oooooo - = = (199) = (1,081) (1,280)
oooooo
gooooooo - 8,602 3416 60,509 6,168 2,250 80,945
ooo
oooooo
oooooonoo 33,968 67,010 321 73,193 21971 1,923 198,386
ooooon
oooooonoo 826 63,100 609 71,398 18,775 2,523 157,231
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g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT(cONTINUED)

l6. 00 00D00O0MOOODOO

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings oo
Leasehold improvements oooooo

Equipment, furniture and fixtures OO0OOOOOOO
Plant and machinery gooooo
Motor vehicles oo

The buildings of the Group are situated in the PRC and
located on land use right under medium-term lease. The
construction in progress represented buildings under
construction which are situated in the PRC.

17. LAND USE RIGHTS

oobooooooooOocOoOoocoooooo
od

5%

the shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
ooooos0000000

20%-25%

10%

20%

oobooooocOoOoooOooOoooooooon

ooboooooOooooOooOocooooon
ooooooo

17. 00000

COST ood

At 1 January 2006 goooooooon
Charge for the year ooooo

Exchange differences oooo

At 31 December 2006
Additions oo

Charge for the year gooooo
Exchange differences oooo

At 31 December 2007
The land use rights of the Group are held under medium-term

lease in the PRC and amortised over the term of the lease of
50 years.
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432
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. 0000
Licence Development Technical
fee costs know-how Total
oooo oooo oooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ood ooo ooo ooo
COST oo
At 1 January 2006 oooooooood 15,016 119,632 - 134,648
Additions oo 26,533 115,436 - 141,969
Exchange differences ogooag - 4203 - 4,203
At31 December2006 OOO0OOOOOOOCOOOO 41,549 239,271 - 280,820
Additions od 15,311 130,507 - 145,818
Acquisition of gooooo
subsidiaries - - 11,819 11,819
Exchange differences ogooag 1,991 18,545 - 20,536
Write-off oo - (57,654) - (57,654)
At 31 December 2007 OOOOOOOCOOOOOO 58,851 330,669 11,819 401,339
AMORTISATION oo
At 1 January 2006 0ooooooooon 12,163 75,527 - 87,690
Charge for the year goooo 7,000 68,835 - 75,835
Exchange differences gooa 76 3,863 - 3,939
At 31 December2006 OCOOOOOOOOCOOOO 19,239 148,225 - 167,464
Charge for the year goooo 10,881 141,155 692 152,728
Exchange differences ogooag 643 15,495 - 16,138
Write-off oo - (57,654) - (57,654)
At 31 December 2007 OO0OO0OOO0OO0OOO0OCOOOO 30,763 247,221 692 278,676
CARRYING AMOUNT ooo
At 31 December 2007 OOD0OOOOOOOCOOOO 28,088 83,448 11,127 122,663
At 31 December 2006 OOO0OOO0OOOOOCOOOO 22,310 91,046 - 113,356

Development costs are internally generated. Technical know-
how of the Group was purchased as part of a business
combination in current year. The Group's license fee was
acquired from third parties.

ooo0o0ooOoOoooOoOooOooOoooooaon
oooocOooCcOoOoooOooocoooooon
oooooooo

The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following period:

ooooooooooooooooooon
oooooooo
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g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS(cONTINUED) 18. 0000 (O)
Licence fee 1-5years oooo 1050
Development costs 9 months - 2 years oooo oo oo 20
Technical know-how 5 years oooo 50

19. DEFERRED TAX 19. 0000

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during
the current and prior years.

At 1 January 2006
(Charge) credit to consolidated
income statement

oooooooood
oooomoao
oooono

At 31 December 2006

Exchange differences ooog
Credit to consolidated income
statement goooooo

At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2007, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$50,473,000
(2006: HK$33,240,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of that subsidiary. The
estimated tax losses as at 31 December 2007 may be carried
forward indefinitely.
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oooooooooooon

oooooooOo0oooOooocoooooan
oooooboooDooocooooo

Write-down

Development of inventories
cost and trade
capitalised receivables
gooad ooooad
doodd Oooooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooao
(3,308) 2,586
(4,376) 445
(7,684) 3,031
(577) 227

1,783 334
(6,478) 3,592

ooooooOoooooOooocooooon
oobDoooOooobOoOooOocooooon
000000000000 050473,00000
oo0o0oooo3324000000@moooon
oooooooOooooOooocoooooaon
oooocooocooOocOoOoocoooooon
ooooooooocoooooon
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00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20000000

2007 2006
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo ooo
Available-for-sale investments comprise: 0ooooooo:
Listed equity securities investments gooooooooo
listed in the PRC 86,911 -
21. GOODWILL 21. 00
HK$'000
ooo
At 1 January 2006 and goooooooooo
1 January 2007 ooooooooooo -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 28) 0o0o0o0o0ooOyoo 280 58,928
At 31 December 2007 J00D0O00O0CoOoooa 58,928
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are 00000oooooooooooo 220
disclosed in note 22.
22. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 22, 000000
As explained in note 8, the Group uses business segments ooo0o8oooooooOooOooOooOOn
as its primary segment for reporting segment information. For oboo00oDbDO0ODOoDOOoO0oOoOOoDOD
the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in note 02100000000000000000
21 has been allocated to the following cash generating unit 000000000000 00ooooooon
("CGU"). The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 000000000o0ooooooon
2007 allocated to this unit is as follows:
Goodwill
oo
HK$'000
oog
Mobile handset solutions goooooon 49,500
Wireless communication module solutions gooooooooo 9,428
58,928
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22. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 22. 000000000
(CONTINUED)
Management of the Group considers cashflow projections 0000000000000 00O0ooon
which was prepared based on financial budgets covering 0ooo0oooOOoDOoooooooOoooOoon
respective period of goodwill and determined that there was ooooooooooooooooooon
no impairment of any of its CGUs containing goodwill as at 31 ooooooooooooo
December 2007.
The recoverable amounts of the CGU of mobile handset 00000000000 O00oOoOooooon
design solutions and wireless communication module 0oDoooooooOOoDOooooooooOoon
solutions have been determined based on a value in use 0ooooooooooonoDoooooon
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections 00000000 0O00oo0ooooooon
based on financial budgets approved by management 02236%000000000000000
covering a b5-years period and discount rate of 22.36%. A key 0000000000000 000O00oOoon
assumption for the value in use calculations is the budgeted ddo0ooDoo0ooDOOoOoooDOOoOoon
growth rate, which is determined based on past performance 0oDoooooooOOoDOooooooooOoon
and management's expectations for the market development. ooooooooooooooooooon
Management believes that any reasonably possible change oooooo
in any of the assumption would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the above CGU to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the above CGU.
23. INVENTORIES 23. 00
2007 2006
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
ogd ooo
Raw materials oo 461,680 308,575
Work in progress ooo 17,291 78,095
Finished goods ooo 41,281 76,066
520,252 462,736
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24. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 24. 00000000

The normal credit period taken on sales of goods is 0-60 days. 000000000 O00OOo0Oeondd
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, notes ooDoo0ooooDOooDooooooooOoon
and bills receivable at the balance sheet date: ooooooo
2007 2006
goooo ooooad
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooad goad
0-30 days 00300 42,724 89,423
31-60 days 310600 3,449 17,110
61-90 days 610 900 2,341 2,743
91-180 days 910 1800 2,059 4,027
Over 180 days 0o 1800 5,116 4,795
55,689 118,098
Less: Accumulated allowances gooooo (6,542) (7,791)
Trade receivables gooooo 49,147 110,307
0-30 days 00300 41,105 17,518
31-60 days 310600 1,926 1,269
61-90 days 610 900 2,140 -
Notes and bills receivable (Note) ooooooQooo 45,171 18,787
Note: Notes and bills receivable represent the promissory notes issued by oooooo0o000OO00O0O0O00000O0OO000
banks received from the customers. oo
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses oobooobbooooobooooooo
an external credit scoring system to assess the potential uoboooobooooobooooooooo
customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by obooooboooobooooooooo
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are uooobooooooooooooooo
reviewed twice a year. 80% of the trade receivables that are ooooobobOOoo8»sooooooooo
neither past due nor impaired have the best credit scoring oooooooon
attributable under the external credit scoring system used by
the Group.
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24. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 24. 00000000 DO0O

(CONTINUED)

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,700,000 (2006:
HK$5,286,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 91 days (2006: 118 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

ooboocOooocooooOooooooooo
3,700,0000 M O0O0O00ODO0O5,286,0000 00
oooOooooOoooOoooOocooooon
oooDo0ooOoooDOoooOoOooooon
oooooooooooooocooooon
SOl 0000O0O1180MM

ooooooOooooooooooo

2007 2006

ooooo ooooo

HK$'000 HK$'000

ooo ooo

61-90 days 610 900 1,919 1,991
91-180 days 910 1800 1,428 2,642
Over 180 days 00 1800 353 653
Total oo 3,700 5,286

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over 1 year
because historical experience is such that receivables that are
past due beyond 1 year are generally not recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

ooooooooooooooooooon
ooboooooooooOooocoooooaon
oooooao

ooooooo

2007 2006

ooooo ooooo

HK$’000 HK$'000

oogd ooo

Balance at beginning of the year gooo 7,791 7,364

Impairment losses recognised gooooooocooog

on receivables 747 917
Amounts written off as uncollectible ooooooogo - (750)
Exchange differences oooo 530 260
Impairment losses reversed goooono (2,526) -
Balance at end of the year gooo 6,542 7,791
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24. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 24. 00000000000
(CONTINUED)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (conTINUED) oooooomoog
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually ddooo0oo0oooOooooooOooon
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance 00l1,7390000 M O0O0O0ODO0O2589,000
of HK$1,739,000 (2006: HK$2,589,000) which have 00D o000o0o0oooooooooon
either been placed under liquidation or in severe financial 0000000000 00DoOoooooon
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these oo
balances.
Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and are ddooo0o0oo0ooooooooDoooon
recoverable on demand. Deposits mainly represented trade 00o000Do0ooooooooooog
deposits paid to third parties.
At 31 December 2007, included in the trade receivables, 000000000000 000000O00
HK$6,016,000 (2006: HK$23,789,000) are denominated in 0000000000000 e,016,00000
USD, which are not denominated in the functional currency of Od0O0oD0oOoO23,789,00000@OoOoOoOg
the respective group entities. oooooooooooooooo

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. 0000000

The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollars and USD. The bank
balances receive interest at an average rate of 1.7% (2006:
1.7%). Included in the bank balances and cash was amounts
in RMB of HK$448,515,000 (2006: HK$643,006,000),
which is not freely convertible into other currencies.

At 31 December 2007, HK$131,022,000 (2006:
HK$174,716,000) are denominated in USD, which are not
denominated in the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

oobooooocoooooooooocoon
O0000000oooooooo0Oll7%40
Oooo0l7%b0000o0oooooog
O0000D0004485150000 M 000On
0064300600000 000000000
ooooooo

0000000000 0000O00000
000D0131,022,0000 (0 000000
174,716,0000 0 00000000000
Oo00000OO0O0O0
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26. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 26. 000000
Trade and payables, other payables, deposits received and 000000000000 000O0Oooon
accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade ddooDooooooOoOOoOoooDOoOoon
purposes and ongoing costs. oo
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding dd0o00o0oooooooooooon
for trade purchases. The normal credit period taken for trade 00od0DOoOoDOoos3ooeo0ooooon
purchases is 30 - 60 days. An aged analysis of the Group's 00000D0o00Oo0oooooooog

trade and notes payables at the respective balance sheet
dates is as follows:

2007 2006

goooo ooood

HK$’000 HK$'000

ooo ooad

0-30 days 00300 304,937 499,105

31-60 days 310 600 104,602 45,542

61-90 days 610 900 51,147 2,938

Over 90 days 0Oooon 23,406 28,864

484,092 576,449

At 31 December 2007, included in the trade payables, oooDo0oooOooooooooooooon

HK$337,175,000 (2006: HK$326,792,000) are 0000o0ooooog337,1750000 110

denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the 00000326,7920000 0000000
functional currency of the respective group entities. gooobooobooooooog
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. 00
Number Share
of shares capital
oooo oo
‘000 HK$'000
oo ood
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each gooooloOoooon
Authorised: ooo
At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006 ooooooooooo
and 31 December 2007 oooooooooooon
0ooooDoooooog 3,000,000 300,000
Issued: gooag
At 1 January 2006 oooooooooo 1,500,000 150,000
Exercise of share options (Note) oooomooo 8,326 833
At 31 December 2006 00o00ooooooooo 1,508,326 150,833
Exercise of share options (Note) oo0oomooo 7,554 755
At 31 December 2007 00o0000oO0ooooooon 1,515,880 151,588
Note: During the year, the Company issued a total 7,554,000 (2006: pgOooooooooooolo2omooooooloz
8,326,000) new shares of HK$0.10 (2006: HK$0.10) each at price 000000000000 O0O00oOoOoOoOog
of HK$1.02 (2006: HK$1.02) per share to eligible employees upon 7,554,0000 000 0008,326,0000 00O 0O
exercise of share options. pgoloomoooOoooo.looomooon
The shares which were issued during the year rank pari passu ooooopooocoOoOoooooooooo
with each other in all respects. oo
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28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. 000000
Acquisition in 2007 00oO0oooooon
On 20 July 2007, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of 000000000000 D00O00OOOdSino
Sino Team Investments Limited and its subsidiary, Shanghai Team Investments Limited OO0 O OO OO OO
Basecom Limited for a consideration of HK$70,000,000. The 000MMDOO0O0o0o0OOO100%00000
transactions have been accounted for using the purchase 0700000000 00000000O0COOOO
method of accounting. oooo
The net assets acquired in the transactions are as follows: gooo0oooooooao

Acquirees' carrying
amount before

combination
and fair value Fair value
ooooooood adjustment Fair value
goooooo ogoooad ooad
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oo ooad ooad
Property, plant and equipment 000000000 238 - 238
Other receivables oooooo 314 - 314
Bank and cash balances goooooo 1,810 - 1,810
Other payables, deposits ooooooooo
received and accruals goooooo (3,109) - (3,109)
Intangible assets goog - 11,819 11,819
(747) 11,819 11,072
Goodwill oo 58,928
Consideration satisfied bycash 00000000 70,000
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING O0OOOOO
ON ACQUISITION: goooooo
Cash paid oooo (70,000)
Bank and cash balances acquired D0 0O O OO OO 1,810
(68,190)
The subsidiaries acquired contributed approximately oooocOooocOooooOooOoooooooo
HK$3,322,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of 000000 O0oO0OooOOano3,322,000000
approximately HK$2,143,000 from operating activities for the ooogezl4aooocoooon

period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet.
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28.00000000O0

Acquisition in 2007 (cONTINUED)

As the revenue and results of the acquired subsidiaries
before the acquisition were not significant to the Group,
the total group revenue and result, as if the acquisition had
been completed on 1 January 2007, are not disclosed as the
information does not give additional value.

In the opinion of management, the carrying amounts
approximated the fair values on the date of acquisition.

Acquisition in 2006

On 24 January 2006, the Group acquired 100% equity
interests in Max Vision Limited and its wholly-owned
subsidiary for a consideration of HK$2. The transactions
have been accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting.

The net assets acquired in the transactions are as follows:

ooooooooooOooo
ooboooooooooooocooooon
oobOoooocoooOooooooooon
oobDoooOooO0ooOoooOoOooOooon
ooooooooooooooooooon
od

ooboooooOoobOoOooocooooon
ooooo

ooooooooood

ooooOooocOooooOooocooooon
O0000000O0O0O0O0Ool00%o0o000
Oo02000000000000000000

oooooooooood

Acquirees' carrying
amount before
combination and

fair value

ooooooooo

ooooooo

HK$'000

ooad

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 00o000oooooooooo 241
Bank balances and cash goooooag 2,110
Other payables, deposits received and accruals 00000000000 00oO00oo (2,351)
Total consideration satisfied by cash gopoooooog -
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 00000000 oooooooo 2,110
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28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. 0000000000
(CONTINUED)
Acquisition in 2006 (cONTINUED) o0oooooooomaog
The subsidiaries acquired contributed approximately godoDoDooOooobOoooooooon
HK$577,647,000 to the Group's revenue and profit of ooooooooooooooooooon
approximately HK$5,569,000 from operating activities for 00577,647,0000 0 0000 O 5,569,000 O
the period between the date of acquisition and 31 December ooooo
2006.
As the revenue and results of the acquired subsidiaries before dooo0oooooOoDoDOooooooooon
acquisition were not significant to the Group, the total group 0ooo0ooooDooDOoDoooooooOon
revenue and result, as if the acquisition had been completed 00000000 0O00O0oo0ooooooon
on 1 January 2006, are not disclosed as the information does 0000000000000 O00OO0O0Oon
not give additional value. ooo
In the opinion of management, the carrying amounts 0dooo0ooooo0ooDoDOoDOooOooooOon
approximated the fair values on the date of acquisition. ooooo
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00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

29. 000000

The Group as lessee

The Group made minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$10,750,000 (2006: HK$8,467,000), in which
approximately HK$4,931,000 (2006: HK$3,507,000) were
capitalised in development cost.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

oooooooo
ooboocOoooooooooOoocoooooo
ooo00000O1o,7500000 M O0OO0OOO
8,467,0000 0 M 000 4,931,0000 O 0O
oooo3h07000000ooooooog
od

ooboocooooobOoOoOoocoOooooo
ooooooooocooooooo

2007 2006

ooooad ooooao

HK$’000 HK$'000

ooad ooo

Within one year oono 5,706 8,194
In the second to fifth year inclusive 00000 ooooooooo - 4417
5,706 12,611

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and
rentals are fixed for an average of two years.

oobDoooOooooooooooooon
oooooo
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30. COMMITMENTS 30. 00
2007 2006
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
oono oono
Capital commitments oooo
Expenditure contracted for but not gooDooooooooaa
provided in the consolidated financial OO0 OO O
statements in respect of:
— building construction ooooo 25,113 -
— plant and machinery oooooo 2,200 -
Other commitment oooo
Expenditure contracted for but not gooDooooooooa
provided in the consolidated financial OO0 OO O
statements in respect of:
— land use right oooooo - 42,301
31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 3. 0000004
The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and ooboooocOoobOobOooOooooooboon
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance ooboooobOobOOooOobOoooooboon
for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the ooooooooOOoOooooOoOoooooa
Group in Hong Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. ooooooocOoooOocOoOoocoooooon
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the oooooooooooooooooooo
employees' salaries and are charged to consolidated income oobooooOoooooOoooooooon
statement as they become payable in accordance with the gooobooOOoooboboooooobooono
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are gooobOoOooooboooooboono
held separately from those of the Group in an independently O000000o0oOooOoOoOoOOob0b0O0o00o
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest oooo00o0oO0ooooooOooO0o00

fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years as at 31 December
2007 and 2006.
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31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

oooomadg

32.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group
to the schemes and cost charged to the consolidated income
statement represents contribution payable to the schemes by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

32.

ooooOo0OO0oO0oOoococoOoOOoOoOoOooaon
ooooooooobOoooocooooon
oobOooooOoobOooooooooon
oooDoO0ooOoOoO0oOoO0o0ooooooon
oooooooooooooooon

oobDoooOooO0ooOoooOoOooOooon
ooooooooooooooooooon
ooooooooocoooo

goooog

The Company had two share option schemes, including pre-
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Options”) and post-initial public offering scheme options
scheme (the “Post-IPO Options”). Both the Pre-IPO Options
and Post-IPO Options were adopted on 30 May 2005. The
major terms and conditions of the two schemes are set out
below:

(A)  Pre-IPO Options
(i) The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

(i) The participants included directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries, senior management
and other employees of the Group.

(i) The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted under the
Pre-IPO Options shall not exceed 44,000,000
shares.

(iv)  Any cancellation of options granted but not
exercised must be approved by the board of
directors. Any options cancelled cannot be
regranted.

ooooooooooooooooooon
ooboooOmoocoooocoooooom
oobooooboOocooooOoOooocooon
oobooooOoooOoooocooooon
oobOooooooooooOoooooon
oobDoO0ooOoOoO0ooOoOoO0OoOoooOoon
ooo

(A) 0DOODODOoOoOooOoooOo
(i) oooooooooooo

(i) DO000O0O0O0OO00OO00OO0O0
ooooooooooooooo
od

(i) OOO0O0O0O0OOOOOO0O00O0
ooooooooooooooon
00 O 44,000,0000 O

(vy O00000O0O0OOOOO0O00O0
oooooooooooooon
ooooooooo
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

32. 000000

(A) Pre-IPO Options (CONTINUED)

(v)  Subject to the vesting period set out on page 111
and the terms of the Pre-IPO Options, an option
may be exercised by the grantee at any time
during the period of 10 years commencing on the
date of grant.

(vi)  No consideration is required to be paid by the
grantee for the grant of options.

(vii)  The exercise price of an option is 60% of the offer
price per share in the Company’s initial public
offering on 21 June 2005.

(viii) The life of the Pre-IPO Options shall be valid
and effective from 30 May 2005 to 14 June
2005, after which time no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Options
shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

(B) Post-IPO Options

(i) The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

(i) The participants included any employee or
executive director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

(iii)  The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Post-
IPO Options must not exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at the listing date (30 June 2005)
and in any event the total maximum number of
shares which might be issued or issuable upon
exercise of all outstanding options should not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.
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(vi)
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000 11l00ooooooog
ooooooooooooooo
oooooooooooooon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

32. 000000

(B) Post-IPO Options (coNTINUED)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The number of shares of the Company for issue
under the Post-IPO Options is 23,875,000
shares, which represents 1.57% of the share
capital as at date of this annual report.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the Post-
IPO Options shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.

(B) D0OODODOOODOODOOmMOO

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

oooOooooooOoooao
oooODooooooOoooan
23,8750000 000000000
0000 1.57%0

ooooooooocoooooo
ooooooooocoooooon
ooooooooooo

ooooooooooooooo
od

. oooooooocoooo

. ooooocooooooao
oooooooooo

° oooooo

ooooooooooooooo
ooooooooocoooooo
ooooooooocoooooon
oooooooooooooon
ooooooooooooooon
ooooo
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oooooooo

For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED) 32. 00000000

The following table disclose details of the options under Pre- 0000000000000 00000O0n
|PO Options and Post-IPO Options held by the grantee and 0000000000000 O0OOOoOoono
movements in such holdings: oooOoOoOOoOoooooon
Qutstanding Qutstanding Qutstanding
Exercise at  Granted Bxercised  Forfeited at  Granted  Evercised  Forfeited at
Category of Name pice  Llanuary  during during during ~ 1January  duing  duing  during 31 December
participants of scheme Date of grant ~ Exercisable period per share 2006 the year theyear  the year 2007 theyear  theyear theyear 2007
oooooo 0ooooo opoooo
0ooo oooa ooooooa
ooooo oooa 0ooo 0oo ooooo 0000 00ooo 0oooo  ooooo 0000 00000 00000 ooooa oooa
(Note ) HKS (Note i) (Noteiv) — (Noteii) (Noteii) — (Noteiv) — (Note i)
ooom 00 gooig - oogwg - oooiig oooig  ooowg oooig
Directors
ao

Tsang Hen Loon, Raymond Pre-1PO Options 3052006 305.2005-295.2015

ooo ooooooo 00000 DOODOODoDOCO
ooaooo 000000 000000000000 1020 3,000,000 = (750,000) - 220000 - (70,000) - 1500000
Zhang Jianping Pre-{PO Options 3052006 305.2005-295.2015
ooo ooooooo 00000 DOODOODoDOCO
ooaooo 000000 000000000000 1020 3,000,000 = (750,000) - 2290000 - (750,000 - 1500000
Tang Rongrong Pre-{PO Options 3052006 305.2005-295.2015
ooo ooooooo 00000 DOODOODoDOCO
ooaooo 000000 000000000000 1020 750000 = (186,000) = 564,000 - (100,000) = 464000
6,750,000 - (168,000 - 5064000 - (1,600,000) - 3464000
Employees of the Group ~ Pre-IPO Options 3052006 305.2005-295.2015
ooooa ooooooo 00000 DOOOODoooCO
oooooo 000000 000000000000 1020 33600000 - (6640000) (5250000 21735000 - (5964,000)(2625,000) 13,156,000

Post-POOptions 1252006 125.2006-2952015

ooooooo 00000 DOODOODoDOCO

ooaooo 000000 000000000000 367 - 12,000,000 - (27300000 9270000 = - (1390000 7875000
PostPOOptins ~~ 1311.2007  13.11.2007-295.2015

ooooooo 00000 DO0OOODOCOOOO

oooooo 000000 0000000ODOO 164 - - - - - 16000000 - - 16000000
Total D0 4030000 12000000 (8326,000) (795,000 36069000 16,000,000 (7,554,000)(4,020,000) 40495000
Bercisable at the end
ofthe year
0ooaoooo 6,324,000
Weighted average exercise
price (HKS)
000000mono 100 365 100 159 1599 1640 1020 1940 1780

110 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2007



32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

32. 000000

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

In relation to each grantee of the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Options, 25% of the options will vest during the period from 1 April
2006 to 31 December 2006 and in each of the three calendar years
from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 12 May 2006
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each of the
four calendar years from 1 January 2007.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 13 November
2007 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each
of the four calendar years from 1 April 2008.

On 12 May 2006 and 13 November 2007, the Company granted
12,000,000 and 16,000,000 share options respectively under
Post-IPO Options, to certain directors of the Company and
employees of the Group. No consideration was received for the
grant of the options.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 2,625,000 (2006:
5,225,000) options granted under the Pre-IPO Options and
1,395,000 (2006: 2,730,000) options granted under Post-IPO
Options were forfeited upon the resignation of employees. The
market price immediate before the date of grant of the Post-IPO
Options, 12 May 2006 and 13 November 2007 were HK$3.8
and HK$1.51 per share respectively. No market price is available
immediate before the date of grant of the Pre-IPO Options as the
options were granted before listing.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 7,554,000 (2006:
8,326,000) Pre-IPO options have exercised at the exercise price of
HK$1.02 per share. The weighted average share price on exercise
dates and the weighted average share price immediately before
exercise dates are HK$2.9 (2006: HK$3.755) per share.

ooo

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

goooooooooooocoOooooooo
goooooooooOooOoOoOoOoooooo
goooooooooooocoOooooooo
goooooooooooocoOooooooo
00oooooo25%00000

goooooooooooocoOooooooo
gooooooooOOoOoOoooOooOOoOoooo
goooooooooooocoOooooooo
25%00000

goooooooooooocoOooooooo
goooooooooooooooooooo
goooooooooooocoOooooooo
025%00000

goo0oooooOoOoooOoooooooOoo
goooooooooooOoOoOoooOoooo
0000 12,000,0000 0000 16,000,0000 O
goooooooooooooooooooo
oooooooooooooo

gooooooOoo0oooooooooooo
00000000000000 2625000000
0000052250000 00000000000
0000000000000 1,395,0000000
0O0o0oO0o00o2730000000000000
gOoooooooooooocOoOooooooo
gOoooooooooooocOoOooooooo
0003800015100 000000O0OOO
g0ooooooOoOoOoooOoOoOooooooo
O00000ooooooooo

Oo0o0o0oo0ooo0ooo0ooo0OOooOooOOoOoo
7,554,00000 0 0O 0O O 008,326,0000 00 O
poooopoooooolo20o00000nOO
gooo0o0oooooooOooOooooooo
000000o0oooo290mooooon
3.7550 0™

oooooooooo ooooooo 111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

oooooooo

For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED) 32. 00000000

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined ooooOoOoOoOooooDOOOoOooooo
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, go0obO0obOO0obOOobOOoboboboooo
with a corresponding adjustment to the Group's share go0o00O00ob0O0obOOobOooooooono
option reserve. In the current year, an amount of share 8,036,0000 M OOO0O0DODO9170,0000 00
option expense of approximately HK$8,036,000 (2006: ooooooooooooooooooon
HK$9,170,000) has been recognised with a corresponding ooo

adjustment recognised in the Group's share option reserve.

The fair values of the share options granted on 13 November oobooooooboOooboooooooooon
2007 (“Post-IPO Options 2007"), on 12 May 2006 (“Post- O0000O0ooO0DoO0DDooOoooooon
IPO Options 2006”) and Pre-IPO Options determined at the ooooo0ooo0oOnmoooooooo
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model ooOonooooooooobooboooooo
was approximately HK$8,554,000, HK$18,465,000 and 0oooo0o0oooooooooood
HK$28,012,000 respectively. 00000000 O00OOdas,bhs4,000000

18,465,000 O O 28,012,0000 O O

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair ooooopooooooooooooo
values of share options:
poooooo booooooo 0o
Post-1PO Post-IPO Pre-IPO ooooo oopoo goooa
Options 2007 Options 2006 Options ooooo onooo ooooo
Share price (Note i) HK$1.49 HK$3.65 HK$1.70 Qoo 14900 36500 1.7000
Exercise price HK$1.64  HK$3.675 HK$1.02 ooo 16400 367500 1.0200
Expected life of options 0oooooo
(Note i) 5 years 6 years 10 years 00wooig 50 60 100
Expected volatility (Note jii) 58.1% 68.0% 33.3% 000Wooio 58.1% 68.0% 33.3%
Expected dividend yield 6.6% 6.4% 39% ooooo 6.6% 6.4% 39%
Risk free rate 3.9% 38% 3.8% ooooo 39% 38% 38%
The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input goboo0oo0o0oOOoODOoOOoDOoOoDOoD
of highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of do0oooOoooooOoOooooOoOooon
share price. The changes in subjective input assumptions can goo0oooOooooboooo

materially affect the fair value estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

32. 000000

33.

Notes:

0}

(i)

(iii)

The share price represented the Company's share price at the date
of grant of the Post-IPO Options 2006 and Post-IPO Options 2007.
The share price of the Company's shares at the date of grant of Pre-
IPO Options was estimated to be HK$1.7 per share, which is equal
to the offer price of the listing shares.

The expected options life is 10 years, 6 years and 5 years from the
date of grant for Pre-IPO Options and Post-IPO Options 2006 and
Post-IPO Options 2007 respectively.

The expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the Company's share price over 90 trade days
immediately before the date of grant for Post-IPO Options 2006 and
Post-IPO Options 2007. The expected volatility for Pre-IPO Options
was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the price of
listed companies with similar business as the Group, due to lack of
historical data.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

ooo

(i) goooooooooooocoOooooooo
goooooooooooocoOooooooo
goooooooooooooOooooooo
djooooooooOooOooOooooooly
goooooooooooooo

(i) goooooooooooocoOooooooo
goooooooooOooOoOoOooooooo
goooooooooooocoOooooooo
O0oloooenOnsOO

(iii) goooooooooooocoOooooooo
goooooooooooocoOooooooo
00o0oO0ooOooOooOoooooecnUononO
goooooooooooooooooooo
goooooooooooocoOooooooo
ooooooooooooooood

33.000000

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management other than the
directors' remuneration as disclosed in note 11 during the
year was as follows:

Short term benefits oooo
Post employment benefits goooo
Share based payments goooooo

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard

to the Group's operating results, responsibilities and

performance of individuals and market trends.

ooooooood
ooo0011000000000000000
ooooooooo

2007 2006
ooooo ooooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
7,334 5,034
234 191

1,062 1,159
8,630 6,384

oobOooooooooooOoooooon
oooDoO0ooOoOoO0oOoO0o0ooooooon
oooooooooooono
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 34. 000000000

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31

December 2007 are as follows:

oooooo

Proportion of

oooocOooocooooOooOoooooooao

Issued and nominal value of
Date and place of fully paid up share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Company
ooooao oooo gooooo
gooo ooooo ooooo Principal activities
oooooo ooo oooo ooooo oooo
Directly  Indirectly
oo oo
SIM Technology Group 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited BVI US$12,233 oooo
ooooo 0001223300
oooooo
oooooo
Sunrise Electronic Industry 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
Limited Samoa US$2,002 oooo
oooooooooo ooooo 000200200
ooooooon
ooooo
Shanghai Sunrise* 9 November 1993 Registered and - 100% Manufacturing and
gooo The PRC contributed capital sales of LCD in the
ooooo RMB200,000,000 PRC
ooooo ooooooo oooooo
oo 0000 200,000,0000 oooooooo
Shanghai Simcom* 5 December 2002 Registered and - 100%  Design and development
goooa The PRC contributed capital of mobile handset
goooa US$1,500,000 solutions and wireless
goocooo gooooog communication module
oad [01,500,0000 O solutions in the PRC
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

oooooooo

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

34. 0000000000 DOO

Name of subsidiary

oooooo

Suncom Logistics*
gooooo

Simcom International

Holdings Limited

Suncom International
Holdings Limited

SIM Technology HK Limited

oooooooooo

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
goood
gooo

goog

23 September 2003
The PRC
goooo
ooooooo
oo

2 October 2003
BVI

ooooog
ooooog
oooooo

12 January 2004
BVI

goooo
gooooo
gooooo

21 April 2004
Hong Kong
goooo
ooooooo
oo

Issued and

fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
gooo
ooooo
gooo

Registered and
contributed capital
US$400,000

ooooooo

0400,0000 O

Ordinary share
Uss$1
ooolono

Ordinary share
UsSs$1
ooolono

Ordinary share
HK$1
ooolono

Proportion of
nominal value of
share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
goooon
ooooo
ooooo
Directly  Indirectly

oo oo

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities
gooo

Procurement,
outsourcing, sales and

marketing of the Group's

products and logistics
services in the PRC
oooO00oo
0ooooooo
oooo0oo
oooo0oo

Investment holding
oooo

Investment holding
oooo

Provision of
administrative services
oooooo

0000000000 ooooooo
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

34. 0000000000 DOO

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
goood
gooo
gooooon gooo

Name of subsidiary

Shanghai Speedcomm* 16 November 2005

ooooo The PRC
gooog
goooooo
oo

17 September 2003
Hong Kong
ooooo
oooooo

oo

Max Vision Limited
pooooo

Shanghai Max Vision* 8 December 2003
goooa The PRC
goocoa

Proportion of
Issued and nominal value of
fully paid up share capital/
share capital/ registered capital
registered capital held by the Company
ooood oooooo
ooooo ooooo Principal activities
ooood ooooo oooo
Directly  Indirectly
ood ood
Registered and - 100%  Design and development
contributed capital of mobile handset
RMB7,500,000 solutions and wireless
ooooooao communication module
0oao 7,500,0000 solutions in the PRC
oooooooooo
oooooo
ooooooo
oooooo
Ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
HK$2 oooo
ooo200
Registered and - 100%  Procurement, outsourcing,

contributed capital sales and marketing of

oooooo
oo
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
goooooono

For the year ended 31 December 2007
00bo00o0oO0ooooooOOooOoDo

34. 0000000000 DOO

Name of subsidiary

oooooo

Shanghai Simcom Wireless
Solutions Limited*
ooooooo(oo)oooon

Shanghai SIM Technology
Limited*
gooo(oo)oooo

Shanghai Simcom Electronic
Limited*
oo0oooooooo

Sino Team Investments Limited

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
goood
gooo

goog

31 October 2006
The PRC
goooa
goooooon
oo

2 August 2006
The PRC
goood
gooogd
oo

21 November 2006
The PRC
goooo
gooooooo
oad

3 January 2007
Samoa
goood

gooo
goog

Issued and

fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
gooo
ooooo
gooo

Registered and
contributed capital
US$200,000

ooooooo

0200,0000 0

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB40,000,000

oooooog

0000 40,000,0000

Registered and
contributed capital
US$200,000

oooooog

[0 200,0000 O

Ordinary shares
US$1
oooloo

Proportion of
nominal value of
share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
gooooo
oooood Principal activities
ooooo oooo
Directly  Indirectly
oo oo
- 100%  Design and development
of wireless
communication module
solutions in PRC
gooooooooo
oooooo
oooo
- 100% Investment holding of
land use right
gooooooooo
- 100% Not yet commence
business
oooo
= 100% Investment holding

oooo

0000000000 ooooooo
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
g000o0o0o0o0ooOO0oOOooOoooo

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

34. 0000000000 DOO

Date and place of

incorporation/
Name of subsidiary registration

goood

gooo
gooooon gooo
Shanghai Basecom Limited* 18 April 2007

0000000(DO)o000  ThePRC
ooooo
oooooo
od

Shenyang SIM Technology Limited* 25 October 2007

oooo(oo)oooo The PRC
goooa
gooooon
oad
* Wholly foreign owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Proportion of
Issued and nominal value of
fully paid up share capital/
share capital/ registered capital
registered capital held by the Company
gooo goooon
ooooo ooooo
gooo ooooo
Directly  Indirectly
ao oo
Registered and - 100%
contributed capital
US$200,000
gooooog
0200,0000 0
Registered and - 100%
contributed capital
US$10,000,000
goboooog
0 10,000,0000 O

* ooobooOoooooooo

Principal activities
gooo

Design and development

of mobile handset

solutions and wireless
communication module

solutions in the PRC
gooooooo
goooono
gonooooooao
goooon

Not yet commence
business
oooo

oooooooooooooOoooooon
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RESULTS
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

oo
oo

ooooo
0oooo

ooooo

ooooooo

oooooo
ooooooo

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Financial Summary

For the year ended 31 December
oooooooooooo

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
ooooo ooooo goooo ooooo goooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo oo ooo

(Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 3)
oonao oooao ooo3o
466,802 1,567,074 2,719,585 3,418,864 2,896,996
40,731 212,697 308,485 391,568 256,623
(9,306) (13,475) (13,424) (18,695) (15,908)
31,425 199,222 295,061 372,873 240,715
29,376 155,534 290,662 372,873 240,715

2,049 43,683 4,399 - -

31,425 199,222 295,061 372,873 240,715

As at 31 December
oooooooo

2005 2006 2007

goooo ooooo goooo

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ooo oo ooo

(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)
oooio oonio oooing

ooooo

ooo 1,461,917 1,833,913 1,955,211
ooo (442,045) (713,766) (710,210)
1,019,872 1,120,147 1,245,001

ooooooooo 1,019,872 1,120,147 1,245,001
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Financial Summary
goog

Notes: ooo

(1) The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 27 October 2004 and (1) J0000OC0O0D00O0D0OO0OO00DO0OO0O0DOOODOOoOOO

became the holding company of the Group with effect from 3 June 2005 as 000000COO0ODO00DO0OODO0DODOOOoDOoDoOoOOO
a result of a reorganisation as set out in the prospectus dated 21 June 2005 0000000O0D00O0D0OOOO0DOO0OOoOoOOoOooOO
issued by the Company (the “Prospectus”). Accordingly, only consolidated Jo00nooo0Moooooooooooooon
balance sheets as at 31 December 2005, 2006 and 2007 have been 0000000000000 O00O0ODOO0OO0O0OO0O0O0
prepared and set out as per above. 0oooooooooooo

(2) The results of the Group for each of the two years ended 31 December (2) 0000000000 0D0OOO0DO0OOO0oDOOoOOoOoOoOoO
2004 have been prepared on a combined basis as if the then group J0000OCO0D0OO0O0O0D0OO0OOO0OOO0OOOOODOOO
structure had been in existence throughout the years concerned and have 00000000o0oooooooooooo
been extracted from the Prospectus.

3) The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 have been 3) 0000000000 0D0OOO0DO0OOO0oDOOoOOoOoOoOoO

extracted from the consolidated income statement which are set out on Jo0o0oooOoooooUoooooooooosonoO
page 50 of the consolidated financial statements.

120 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2007



Corporate Information

NEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Ms YEUNG Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr WONG Cho Tung

Mr TSANG Hen Loon, Raymond
Mr ZHANG Jianping

Mr WONG Hei, Simon

Mr WONG Sun

Ms TANG Rongrong

Independent

non-executive Directors:

Mr HENG Kwoo Seng

Mr WANG Chengwei

Mr ZHUANG Xingfang
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms WONG Tik

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr CHAN Tat Wing, Richard CGA
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr HENG Kwoo Seng (Chairman)
Mr WANG Chengwei

Mr ZHUANG Xingfang
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr ZHUANG Xingfang (Chairman)
Mr WANG Chengwei

Mr WONG Cho Tung

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
LEGAL ADVISER

Norton Rose

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of Communications
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

CLSA Equity Capital
Markets Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suites 5005-5006, 50th Floor
Central Plaza

No. 18 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road
Pembroke

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH
SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.sim.com

STOCK CODE

2000

EEg
HITEE
BB+ (F/E)
FHEREE
EEELE
REIFEAE
FHESEAE
TEREE
ERgtz
BUHHITEE
TR BE R E
BT
EfTAEE
AEAWE
wmk+
BERERTH
FRIELR ST CGA
EREESY
MwELE (£E)
B e
ETH%E
FHEES
TR %% (FE)
TR
TFHEREEE
AR

=Y e SRS GRTANTT
PN PP
HIEEK
FEERBIT
BAERITHRAF]

SBIRTT
EERRERRT

SRR

BREHFEATSERAT

AMREL

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

BRERERER
FTEEXIMR

B IBIE185%
FIRES
5018
5005-5006%

BRHIBFEETAR

Butterfield Fund Services

(Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre
11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda
BERERNBFERLTE
BEBRRBHEERLERAR]
BA

B

SR KER1835,
AL

17TH1T712-16F

Fipeld

http://www.sim.com

IRt 4w

2000



SIM Technology Group Limited
BANKEEARADF

Suites 5005-5006, 50th Floor, Central Plaza
No. 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB S B 2185 P IR E 55012 5005-5006 =
Tel.: +852 2368 6824 Fax: +852 2367 6724
www.sim.com

Design and Production: Equity Financial Press Limited www.equitygroup.com.hk



	封面
	財務概要
	本年度大事紀
	目錄
	主席報告
	總裁的話
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合收益表
	綜合資產負債表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務摘要
	公司資料

